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          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good morning.

          3    My name is Madeline Provenzano, and I Chair the

          4  Committee on Housing and Buildings.  Today the

          5  Committee is conducting its first hearing on

          6  Proposed Intro. No. 324- A, a local law to amend the

          7  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

          8  relation to requirements for City owned and City-

          9  funded green buildings.

         10                 And on Intro. No. 438, a local law to

         11  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

         12  York in relation to the expedited review of permits

         13  or other approvals for green buildings.           The

         14  Committee expects to hear from representatives of

         15  the Administration, Real Estate Professionals, and

         16  other persons interested in these two pieces of

         17  legislation.

         18                 Today modern architects and engineers

         19  can reduce some of the negative health and

         20  environmental impacts of buildings, by designing

         21  what is now known as high- performance buildings or

         22  green buildings.  According to the U.S. Green

         23  Building Council, the nation's foremost Coalition of

         24  Real Estate and Environmental Organizations working

         25  to promote green buildings, green building is
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          2  defined as design and construction practices that

          3  significantly reduce or eliminate the negative

          4  impact of buildings on the environment and occupants

          5  in five bullet areas of design, specifically,

          6  sustainable site planning, water resource savings

          7  and efficiency, energy efficiency and renewable

          8  energy, conservation of materials and resources, and

          9  indoor environmental quality.

         10                 U.S. Green Building Council has

         11  developed a green building rating system known as

         12  LEED, L- E- E- D, which stands for Leadership in

         13  Energy and Environmental Design.  Buildings receive

         14  LEED certification if their designs score sufficient

         15  points in the five general design areas listed

         16  above.  Depending on the number of points a building

         17  receives, a building can be rated as certified

         18  silver, gold, or platinum.  The benefits of green

         19  buildings include, reduced impact on natural

         20  resources, financial savings, improved occupant

         21  comfort and health, and sustained strain on local

         22  infrastructure-- and reduced strain, not sustained.

         23  Compared with conventional construction, green

         24  buildings typically use less water and energy,

         25  reduce air pollution, use fewer resources, and
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          2  produce less waste, have better indoor air quality,

          3  and are associated with improvements and worker

          4  productivity.  Many of these benefits lead to

          5  quantifiable financial savings.

          6                 The use of green building criteria in

          7  New York City will substantially reduce the City's

          8  energy consumption, air pollution, and water use, as

          9  well as improve occupant health and worker

         10  productivity.  Reducing the overall energy demand,

         11  the green building techniques will reduce our

         12  dependence on foreign oil and reduce our alliance on

         13  dirty, inefficient power plants.

         14                 This hearing will consider whether it

         15  is reasonable and necessary to provide incentives

         16  for the use of green buildings standards in the

         17  construction and renovation of buildings in New York

         18  City.

         19                 Proposed Intro. No. 324-A will employ

         20  the use of green building standards in the

         21  construction and renovation of city-owned and

         22  city-funded buildings.  And Proposed Intro. No. 438

         23  would require applicable City agencies, including

         24  the Department of Buildings, to establish an

         25  expedited review of permits or other approvals for
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          2  green buildings.

          3                 We are also voting on two pieces of

          4  legislation. Obviously, we have to vote, when we

          5  have enough members to vote. The only, very faithful

          6  person I have here on my right, is Council Member

          7  Robert Jackson.

          8                 The Intro. No. 318, which amends the

          9  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         10  relation to exemption from taxation for alterations

         11  and improvements to multiple dwellings.

         12                 As the supply of vacant real property

         13  diminishes in New York City, creative methods of

         14  real estate development are needed to help address

         15  the City's housing needs.

         16                 This legislation would authorize J51

         17  Tax Exemption Benefits to alterations, improvements,

         18  or conversions for an expansion of cubic content to

         19  an existing building or structure.

         20                 This benefit, however, would be

         21  available only if at least 50 percent of the floor

         22  area of a completed building consists of the

         23  original structure.

         24                 On June 9th, 2004, the Committee on

         25  Housing and Buildings heard testimony from
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          2  representatives of the Department of Housing

          3  Preservation and Development concerning this

          4  legislation, and we are ready to vote on it today.

          5                 The other piece of legislation is

          6  Intro. No. 407, which amends the Administrative Code

          7  of the City of New York in relation to the

          8  electrical code.

          9                 This adds two amendments to section

         10  27- 3025 of the Administrative Code of the City of

         11  New York, which would amend article 352 of the

         12  National Fire Protection Associations NFPA70

         13  National Electrical Code.

         14                 With regard to the use, installation,

         15  and construction specifications for rigid non

         16  metallic conduit (RNC), and associated fittings, the

         17  bill specifically adds language, amending Section

         18  352.10, Uses Permitted and amending Section 352.12,

         19  Uses Not Permitted.

         20                 First the bill would authorize the

         21  use of non metallic conduits in residential

         22  buildings of three floors or less, and in any

         23  dwelling unit that does not exceed three floors

         24  above grade.

         25                 Secondly, the bill would also
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          2  restrict the use of non-metallic conduits in all

          3  other buildings.

          4                 On September 8, 2004, the Committee

          5  on Housing and Buildings heard testimony from

          6  representatives of the Department of Buildings

          7  concerning this legislation; thus, we are ready to

          8  vote on this piece of legislation, also.

          9                 Again, when we have members and a

         10  quorum, I will interrupt whatever is going on so

         11  that we can vote on these two pieces.  And we have

         12  also been joined by Council Member Lew Fidler, and

         13  Council Member Joel Rivera.

         14                 Anyone that wishes to speak please

         15  sign in at the Sergeant- At- Arms, and we are asking

         16  that you please try and limit your testimony to five

         17  minutes, as we have quite a number of testifiers

         18  today.

         19                 First, we will hear from the

         20  Administration.  We have Stephen Kramer, Chief of

         21  Staff for the New York City Department of Buildings,

         22  and Robert Kulikowski, Director of the New York City

         23  Office of Environmental Coordination.

         24                 Steve do you want to speak first?

         25  Bob, okay.
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          2                 MR. KRAMER:  Bob will speak first.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You already

          4  made this little deal.  Okay.

          5                 MR. KULIKOWSKI:  Good morning

          6  Chairperson Provenzano, members of the Committee.

          7  My name is Robert Kulikowski, and I am the Director

          8  of the New York City Office of Environmental

          9  Coordination.  And I thank you for the opportunity

         10  to testify on Intro. 324- A of 2004.

         11                 The Bloomberg Administration

         12  supports, in principle, the intent of this proposed

         13  legislation, and clearly recognizes the value of

         14  building green.  This is evidenced by the high

         15  performance, building guidelines developed by the

         16  Department of Design and Construction, in

         17  cooperation and support of the Design Trust for

         18  Public Space.  One of the earliest and most thorough

         19  presentations of sustainable design in the United

         20  States, it has received worldwide recognition.

         21  Indeed, DDC now incorporates high performance design

         22  and materials into a number of its projects. For

         23  example, the Queens Botanical Garden Administration

         24  building is intended to be LEED certified, as is the

         25  new building for the Office of Emergency Management,
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          2  the site for which was approved by the Council.

          3                 In addition to a certified building,

          4  the Queens Botanical Garden will incorporate other

          5  sustainable elements, such as, storm water run- off

          6  management, and other water conservation techniques.

          7    As a further commitment to high performance

          8  buildings, the City, in conjunction with the U.S.

          9  Environmental Protection Agency, last year sponsored

         10  the first annual green building competition to

         11  demonstrate the practicality of such construction in

         12  New York City, for a variety of building types.

         13  Based on the extremely successful first competition,

         14  the second is currently being planned.

         15                 In another Administration initiative,

         16  the City participates in the Cities for Climate

         17  Protection Campaign, sponsored by the International

         18  Council for Local Environmental Initiatives (ICLEI).

         19    As part of this program, we have conducted an

         20  inventory of greenhouse gas emissions from City

         21  operations and facilities, and are developing plans

         22  to reduce these emissions as part of the City's

         23  participation in this project.  This initiative

         24  demonstrated that City buildings are the largest

         25  contributor of greenhouse gas emissions from City
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          2  operations and facilities, responsible for

          3  approximately 75 percent of total emissions.

          4  Development of high performance, energy efficient

          5  City buildings will be a critical component of any

          6  plan to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from this

          7  sector.

          8                 While the LEED standard incorporates

          9  many sustainable design principles, its rating

         10  system was not designed to specifically apply to the

         11  unique architectural environment of New York City,

         12  or the real estate terms governing many City

         13  properties.  For example, the City currently

         14  occupies more than 22 million square feet of leased

         15  space representing 516 leases.  Of these, 365 are

         16  leases for spaces exceeding 10,000 square feet.

         17  Approximately half of these leases are for office

         18  space and the remainder includes warehouses,

         19  garages, senior centers, and daycare centers.  Many

         20  of the leases the cities enter into involve

         21  substantial alterations to the landlords' premises.

         22  In Fiscal Year 2004, for example, the City spent

         23  approximately $75 million on alterations to leased

         24  space where the private owner contracted for the

         25  performance of the work.
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          2                 It was, in fact, in this non- urban

          3  facet of the LEED rating system that the Council

          4  recognized the need for the development of a system

          5  to accredit high- performance buildings in an urban

          6  environment by collaborating with the City's

          7  Economic Development Corporation and the New York

          8  State Energy Research and Development Authority

          9  (NYSERDA) to study the development of an urban LEED

         10  standard.  It is this Administration's position that

         11  a greater environmental benefit will be achieved by

         12  the development and adoption of a high performance

         13  building accreditation system tailored for

         14  application in a dense urban setting than by

         15  mandating the application of the Green Building

         16  Council's current LEED system to City Buildings.  In

         17  other words, it is more important to have a good,

         18  high- performance building, not just a plaque on the

         19  door.

         20                 Additionally, efforts are currently

         21  underway nationally to develop a LEED standard for

         22  neighborhood development. This will take into

         23  account a number of urban issues.  For example, the

         24  current LEED new construction standard allows one

         25  point, if there is development on a Brown Field.
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          2  This is the same as that assigned to installation of

          3  bike storage, and gives no weight to the extent of

          4  contamination on the Brown Field, or the complexity

          5  of the remediation required.

          6                 Clearly, the LEED system as it now

          7  stands is less than optimal for New York City, and

          8  it will provide additional benefit, given that the

          9  current Administration currently strongly believes

         10  in sustainable principles, to work with both of

         11  these efforts to produce a product that will

         12  ultimately be more beneficial to the City.

         13                 In addition to the need for an urban

         14  LEED system, this Administration has several

         15  concerns with the current version of this bill.

         16                 As currently drafted, the bill does

         17  not account for the potential impact on costs to the

         18  City.  It is possible that the long-term financial

         19  benefits of LEED Silver Certification might not

         20  offset additional construction costs necessary to

         21  achieve such a rating.  In addition, the bill should

         22  be assessed for its impacts to construction and

         23  life- cycle costs, as well as on health and

         24  productivity benefits.  Although the current LEED

         25  standard may be appropriate for some City buildings,
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          2  it is not appropriate for all building types, in all

          3  settings.  Until we have explored further the

          4  options for developing and implementing an Urban

          5  LEED standard, it would be more prudent to approach

          6  LEED certification of City buildings on a case- by-

          7  case basis.

          8                 As stated earlier, this

          9  Administration supports the intent of this bill, and

         10  I might add, it strongly supports the intent of this

         11  bill, and strongly believes in the value of

         12  providing space in which to work, learn, and receive

         13  the benefits of City services that best protects the

         14  health and well- being of all New Yorkers.  By

         15  working collectively, we hope to develop and

         16  implement a high- performance building accreditation

         17  system that is most appropriately suited to New

         18  York's built environment.

         19                 Thank you, and I will be happy to

         20  entertain any questions you may have.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         22  Stephen we will hear from you, and then we will take

         23  questions.  We have also been joined by Council

         24  Member Anthony Avella.

         25                 MR. KRAMER:  Good morning Chairperson
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          2  Provenzano and members of Committee on Housing and

          3  Buildings. My name is Stephen Kramer, and I am the

          4  Chief of Staff of the City's Department of

          5  Buildings.  I am appearing on behalf of the

          6  Department's Commissioner, Patricia J. Lancaster,

          7  who is unavailable for testimony this morning.  On

          8  her behalf, I thank you for the opportunity to

          9  testify today concerning Intro. 438 of 2004,

         10  regarding the expedited review of permits for Green

         11  Buildings.

         12                 Intro. 438 would require the

         13  department to expedite applications that include

         14  LEED certified plans, report to the City Council on

         15  the implementation of an expedited, internal review

         16  process for these plans, by October of next year,

         17  and provide to the Council certain statistics

         18  concerning the expedited review process every year

         19  thereafter.

         20                 While the Department appreciates the

         21  motives behind Intro. 438, and we certainly agree

         22  that providing incentives to encourage Green

         23  Building development is an important and very worthy

         24  goal, the particular methods prescribed in Intro.

         25  438 will likely have unintended consequences that
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          2  outweigh their benefits. For instance, expediting

          3  the review of plans for Green Buildings will

          4  inevitable slow down and complicate the review of

          5  plans for other buildings, which are also in the

          6  waiting list for review. These could include

          7  buildings such as:  Private schools, affordable

          8  housing projects, religious institutions or

          9  religious schools, or private hospitals that while

         10  not LEED certified, may still be urgently needed,

         11  and provide a community with significant social or

         12  economic benefits.  The resulting two- tiered review

         13  process, faster for some buildings, proportionately

         14  slower for others, would do little to promote the

         15  goal of making New York City or the Department a

         16  simpler and easier place in which to use and to

         17  build.

         18                 Additionally, just because a building

         19  is LEED certified, does not mean it is otherwise

         20  zoning and code compliant. Forcing expediting review

         21  of Green Buildings could affect the Department's

         22  ability to properly address those issues.

         23                 As a practical matter LEED

         24  certification is not granted until after

         25  construction is complete, and not as the bill
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          2  assumes, before plans are filed.  For instance, LEED

          3  certification prerequisites include erosion and

          4  sedimentation control, building commissioning, and

          5  achieving a certain level of indoor air quality. All

          6  of these require measurement during or at the end of

          7  the project's construction.  Thus, any

          8  representation concerning LEED status made at plan

          9  submission could only be considered a statement of

         10  intention, at best.  The Department does not

         11  consider expedited review appropriate under these

         12  circumstances.  Indeed, doing so would invite

         13  misrepresentation.

         14                 Even if plans were submitted with the

         15  best of intentions, if at the end of construction,

         16  an owner has met all of the requirements for

         17  certification - -  for Certificate of Occupancy

         18  issuance except obtaining a LEED certification

         19  letter, Intro. 438 leaves the status of the C of O

         20  unclear.  Under these circumstances, we cannot

         21  support the bill.

         22                 Thank you very much, and we will be

         23  happy to answer questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         25  both.  I have a question for Mr. Kulikowski.  The
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          2  private sector including some of the largest real

          3  estate companies in the City are using LEED, and

          4  many cities across the country have also adopted

          5  LEED, why not New York City?

          6                 MR. KULIKOWSKI:  It is not that we

          7  are against adopting LEED, we think that LEED should

          8  be used where appropriate. It is just that to

          9  incorporate it into the City's regulatory framework

         10  at this point, we see as being somewhat more

         11  problematic given the relationship that the City has

         12  with private landlords, from whom they lease space,

         13  and buildings just may not be appropriate.  And

         14  while they may not be able to achieve LEED

         15  certification by missing a point or two, they will

         16  still be, they will strive toward high performance.

         17                 May I just add something, Madam

         18  Chairwoman? Actually, I was at an a Asystole

         19  Development Conference last week and I

         20  serendipitously ran into someone who is a new member

         21  of one--

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Could you

         23  put, yes that is better.

         24                 MR. KULIKOWSKI: -- a new member of

         25  one of the LEED core committees, and who is
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          2  interested in this LEED Urban Neighborhood

          3  Development Program.  As we talked in the taxi ride

          4  to the airport, there are a lot of overlaps between

          5  the Council, NYSERDA, and EDC's initiative, and what

          6  this fellow wants to do. I am actually having lunch

          7  with him on Friday.  So, there are, I do not think

          8  we want to totally shut the door.  It is just that

          9  given the current, the way the bill is drafted

         10  currently, and making LEED Silver a requirement is,

         11  may not be the most beneficial way to approach it at

         12  this time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.  My

         14  absolutely, fantastic Counsel tells me that we have

         15  a correction to the Department of the Buildings

         16  testimony.  It appears that Intro. 438 does not

         17  presume a building has received LEED certification

         18  before completion of construction.  In fact, the

         19  bill only requires an application for LEED be filed.

         20                 Do we have any questions from Council

         21  members? Robert, Council Member Jackson.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         23  Now, I believe, and correct me if I am wrong, and I

         24  know that you have been in this business much longer

         25  than I have, but under LEED's it would talk about -

                                                            21

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2   -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Robert, is

          4  your mic on?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes, it is

          6  on.  What is the time frame now that is required

          7  under the law for approving the issuing of permits?

          8  I mean, because it talks about here that under this

          9  expedited system, the approval or rejection of

         10  permit applications and resubmissions for qualifying

         11  buildings and spacers must be issued in 50 percent

         12  less time than required under law for non-

         13  qualifying building and spaces; is that correct?

         14                 What is the time frame for regular, I

         15  mean as far as, is there a requirement in the regs,

         16  and what is the practical time frame.

         17                 MR. KRAMER:  I think, it depends very

         18  much on the complexity of the building.  I mean, you

         19  take a building, a large building like AOL Time

         20  Warner, it is going to be a matter of months before,

         21  and we can't tell until the plans are submitted and

         22  reviewed how long the time is going to take.  Even a

         23  12 story apartment building that does not appear to

         24  be controversial may present very complex zoning

         25  issues, which in fact take a good deal of time to be
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          2  reviewed in order to determine whether or not it's

          3  compliant.  On the other hand, you can take large

          4  buildings that, in fact, clearly are code compliant,

          5  and it can take less. But we do not have benchmarks

          6  where I can tell you that any particular building,

          7  or school, or church, or mosque, takes X percentage

          8  of time.  It is that we do not have benchmarks like

          9  that.  Obviously, if an architect comes in and--

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But is

         11  there, I mean, I know that there is different

         12  complications and different sizes, but I would

         13  assume that the Department of Buildings and your

         14  offices keep an average of, you know, since these

         15  permits are being issued all the time.  What is the

         16  average time?  Is there an average time?

         17                 MR. KRAMER:  No, I do not think we

         18  have any meaningful average times for apartment

         19  houses, or schools, or what not.  If a building

         20  comes in and uses the, you know, an architect comes

         21  in and uses the professional certification process,

         22  you know, that obviously, is not going to require

         23  plan examiner review.  If they come in and ask for

         24  our plan examiners to review it, you know, there are

         25  times when it varies by borough, and it varies by
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          2  the complexity of the process.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But there is

          4  no average time?

          5                 MR. KRAMER:  We do not have

          6  benchmarksfor that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What is the

          8  rules or regulations of codes, what is the

          9  requirement within the rules and regulations?

         10                 MR. KRAMER:  I do not believe that

         11  there are any requirements in the rules for

         12  specific, at least I am not familiar with them.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I believe my

         14  staff of the Council indicates that the

         15  Administrative Code requires 40 days. Is that true?

         16                 MR. KRAMER:  Let me check with my

         17  Counsel,

         18  and I will be glad to get back to you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, why do

         20  you not check right now?

         21                 MR. KRAMER:  Okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So I can get

         23  an answer.

         24                 MR. KRAMER:  The Code requires, I

         25  have been informed the Code requires 40 days for
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          2  first review, but not for approval. Approval, there

          3  is no provision, at least none that I am familiar

          4  with, in the Code, which mandates either approval or

          5  rejection within a particular point in time.  I

          6  believe that we are substantially in compliance with

          7  the 40- day requirement.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You believe

          9  that?

         10                 MR. KRAMER:  Yes.  It is very

         11  difficult to have those kind of benchmarks.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Then, how do

         13  you believe that then?  Since you gave me no

         14  statistical information.

         15                 MR. KRAMER:  Because people, when I

         16  go to meetings and interface with members of the

         17  building industry and the building community, on the

         18  whole people have not been bringing up, you not

         19  meeting the 40 day requirement too, - -

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I see.

         21                 MR. KRAMER: - -  and they do complain

         22  loudly.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, under

         24  this proposed Intro., basically it would require 50

         25  percent less time than what it normally takes.
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          2                 MR. KRAMER:  If it is reducing the 50

          3  percent for the time for first review, it would be

          4  reducing that from 40 days to 20 days.  But it would

          5  not, in terms in actually getting a permit to build,

          6  in terms of all of the other reviews that are

          7  necessary, whether or not this requires a special

          8  permit, or whether or not it requires environmental

          9  review, you know, some of our building sites have

         10  been E designations, it would not have any

         11  significant impact on that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I, in our

         13  briefing documents it says many states such as New

         14  Jersey, Pennsylvania, Maryland, Connecticut,

         15  California, Massachusetts, Rhode Island, and New

         16  York say they have begun to utilize the LEED for

         17  state- owned buildings.  Why can not then, I have

         18  heard your presentations, and basically, both of you

         19  said that you can not support this Intro., you know,

         20  for one reason or another, and the bottom line is

         21  that you can not support it.  Is that correct, with

         22  the individuals that you are representing?

         23                 MR. KRAMER:  That is correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, why

         25  can't then, we get, we, meaning New York City, our

                                                            26

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  commissioners, and experts, and legislative people,

          3  why can't we get in front of the curve?  Why do we

          4  always have be at the back end of the curve with

          5  respects to environmental things that are going to

          6  be more beneficial for the people of New York City?

          7  Can somebody answer that?

          8                 MR. KULIKOWSKI:  I think that we are

          9  trying very hard to get in front of that curve,

         10  Council Member.  As you know the Council is one of

         11  the joint sponsors on looking at Urban LEEDs, and

         12  there has always been sort of this New York

         13  philosophy that New York is a special place and

         14  other codes that may be applicable throughout other

         15  jurisdictions such as building codes, fire codes,

         16  and electrical codes are basically fined tuned for

         17  the unique New York City environment.  I think that

         18  that is really the situation that we have right now

         19  is that we need, while the LEED standard is good for

         20  new construction, it was basically developed for

         21  suburban development so that you got a lot of points

         22  for things like setting your transit or public

         23  transportation.  Whereas those things are inherent

         24  to New York City, and as the example that I

         25  mentioned for Brown Field redevelopment, they are
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          2  unique to New York City and dense urban environment,

          3  and we just need to take that next step, and take

          4  this LEED standard and fine tune for New York City.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I see.

          6  Well, I know, you know the briefing documents and

          7  staff here are very well prepared, and they tell me

          8  that cities like Chicago, L.A., which are major

          9  cities of the United States have adopted this, and I

         10  just do not see why we can not move in that

         11  direction ourselves.  I understand that there is

         12  problems, but, you know, where there is a will,

         13  there is a way, and if other major cities, and

         14  Chicago is almost as old as New York City, I mean as

         15  far as subways, and infrastructures, and tall

         16  buildings, and what have you, so.  I think you need

         17  to look at that.

         18                 MR. KULIKOWSKI:  We will.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         21  Member  Fidler.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you

         23  Madam Chairwoman. Mr. Kramer I am concerned with the

         24  part of your testimony regarding Intro. 438 that

         25  says that the Buildings' Department concern that the
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          2  Intro. Will have unintended consequences, in that it

          3  would delay plan review for non- expedited projects

          4  for things such as private schools, affordable

          5  housing projects, or hospitals.  Can you quantify in

          6  anyway for me how many plan reviews would be

          7  expedited under 438 in a given year?

          8                 MR. KRAMER:  I think that is actually

          9  one of the questions that we do not know, we really

         10  do not know what the volume is.  But we do know that

         11  the, you know, we issued, I think, last year close

         12  to 100 thousand permits.  Certainly, most of those

         13  were not permits which required a plan review, but

         14  we are talking in the thousands and thousands which

         15  did.

         16                 The problem is essentially, what we

         17  have been trying to do, and we have been doing with

         18  your support, is attempting to streamline the

         19  building review process, and as you know to put many

         20  of the benchmarks and indicators up on the Web, so

         21  that owners can follow their projects much more

         22  closely and know where they are in the process of

         23  review, and standardizing the objection process and

         24  hopefully, using technology in a way that we can

         25  expedite the process for everyone.
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          2                 Some of the new technologies is

          3  something which we in fact do try, and we get a

          4  Green Building in which uses a new and experimental

          5  technology, our Technical Affairs Unit has been very

          6  responsive.  And I think most people in the building

          7  community will attest to that.  That in fact, over

          8  here in Battery Park City where we have some

          9  examples of some LEED certified buildings with some

         10  very, very novel technologies.  We have gotten the

         11  technical review and approval of those on an

         12  experimental basis approved in quite short order.

         13  But the idea of trying to run to the top, you know,

         14  LEED certified buildings which, I say, they may be

         15  very popular as a concept, but when they come down

         16  to the apartment house that is throwing shadows on,

         17  you know, or blocking the windows of your building,

         18  it is not something we would like to see.  The plan

         19  examiners being put under very, very short time

         20  pressures because those buildings deserve as much

         21  review from a zoning and other Building Code point

         22  of view, as much as anything else.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Mr. Kramer,

         24  in all do respect, you did not answer the question,

         25  even closely.  I have a great deal of respect for
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          2  the work that has been done at the Buildings'

          3  Department, in terms of trying to modernize the

          4  procedures.  I think the Buildings' Department under

          5  Commissioner Lancaster has made great strides from

          6  being one of the, I use to call it a bottomless pit,

          7  now you can at least see the bottom.

          8                 I am trying to get a handle, and

          9  really it should not be that difficult for Buildings

         10  to come up with some estimate of what percentage of

         11  jobs that require plan review would be covered by

         12  438 that would require an expedited review.  Do you

         13  have any notion?  Can you give us any notion?  If

         14  you went back to Buildings and checked, would you be

         15  able to tell us?

         16                 MR. KRAMER:  No, I do not think we

         17  would, because we do not track buildings that are

         18  LEED certified.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  But if you

         20  picked up a pile, a representative pile of plans

         21  that are subject to review and looked at a 100 of

         22  them and said, well, 3 percent, 5 percent, 10

         23  percent, you can not do that?

         24                 MR. KRAMER:  In their plan

         25  applications, currently, there is not only no
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          2  requirement, but there is no even place to put an

          3  indication that you believe your building is going

          4  to be eligible for LEED certification.  So, the

          5  answer is that information is not submitted to us by

          6  developers, and therefore, and we do not track it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So, that

          8  would have to become something new in an

          9  application.

         10                 MR. KRAMER:  That is correct.  An

         11  additional required item.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Okay.  That

         13  is at least a fair answer.  I would be as concerned

         14  as anybody that we not dumb down a process would.  I

         15  do not want make the process by which we review non-

         16  438 projects slower.  This Council, you know,

         17  without the request of City Planning, added money to

         18  the budget to hire more personnel to the City

         19  Planning, so the City Planning could do more

         20  downzonings.  Something that City Planning did not

         21  ask for.

         22                 I would suggest to you that, if and

         23  when we pass 438, rather than be in a situation that

         24  would slow down any plan review, that if Buildings

         25  came to us with a reasonable dollar figure for how
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          2  much it is going to cost to do the expedited

          3  reviews, how much more personnel you would need to

          4  get that job done, you would have an extraordinarily

          5  compelling argument that we need to fund the mandate

          6  that we have given to you.  And so, rather than look

          7  at it as, we can not do this, it is going to slow

          8  everything down, let's look at maintaining the speed

          9  by which we are doing what we are doing, and find a

         10  way to expedite the things we are looking to

         11  expedite.  And, that is the way I urge to look at

         12  it.

         13                 I assure you that I will remember

         14  these words come budget time, when 438 is passed,

         15  and when you have implemented it, you come back to

         16  us and tell us how much it cost to implement it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Do we have

         18  any other questions?  We have been joined by Council

         19  Member Gale Brewer, Council Member Letitia James,

         20  Council Member Katz.  Did I miss anybody?  No.

         21                 If we do not have anymore questions

         22  for the two gentlemen, we will dismiss them, and

         23  vote.

         24                 As I stated before we have two pieces

         25  of legislation that we are voting on.  The first one
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          2  is Intro. No. 404, I am sorry, 407, that is all we

          3  have to do is vote on the wrong number. And we heard

          4  testimony on September 8th on this bill.  It amends

          5  the Administrative Code of the City of New York in

          6  relation to the Electrical Code.

          7                 MS. NASSER:  With regard to Intro.

          8  407, Council Member Provenzano.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yes.

         10                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Rivera.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Aye.

         12                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Avella.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Aye.

         14                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Brewer.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Aye.

         16                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Fidler.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Aye.

         18                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Jackson

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Aye.

         20                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Katz.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I vote aye, and

         22  I want to apologize for my tardiness, Public Safety

         23  is also waiting for a quorum still.  So, I am going

         24  to head back there, but I want to vote aye on all.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member James.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  I vote, aye,

          4  and the same for me I have leave, Veteran Affairs is

          5  waiting for a quorum as well.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We are

          7  actually voting separately, busy, busy bunch.

          8                 The next one is Intro. No. 318.  As I

          9  stated before the Committee on Housing and Buildings

         10  heard testimony on this on June 9th, 2004.  It

         11  amends the Administrative Code of the City of New

         12  York in relation to exemption from taxation for

         13  alteration improvements to multiple dwellings.

         14                 MS. NASSER:  Intro. No. 318, Council

         15  Member Provenzano.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Yes.

         17                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Rivera.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Aye

         19                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Avella

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Aye.

         21                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Brewer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Abstain.

         23                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Comrie.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Aye.

         25                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Fidler.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Aye

          3                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Jackson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Aye.

          5                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Katz.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Aye.

          7                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member James.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Aye.

          9                 MS. NASSER:  Council Member Comrie,

         10  when you have a moment, if you would to Intro. No.

         11  407 and Intro. No. 318.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I vote aye on

         13  407, the Electrical Code, and 318, the J51, Aye on

         14  both.  Thank you.

         15                 MS. NASSER:  Thank you.  The vote

         16  will remain open. As it stands now, Intro. No. 407

         17  has passed the Committee by a vote of 9 in the

         18  affirmative, and none in the negative, no

         19  abstentions. And Intro. No. 318, as it stands now,

         20  has a vote of 8 in the affirmative, none in the

         21  negatives, and 1 abstention. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         23  very much.  Thank you members.  You can see what a

         24  busy, busy Council this is.  Okay. We will be taking

         25  folks in panels.
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          2                 As I call your name, please come up,

          3  1, 2, 3, 4, 5, okay we have five, and we have five

          4  seats, that is okay.  Bob Fox from Cook and Fox;

          5  Jody Durst from Durst Organization; Russell

          6  Albanese, Albanese Organization; Michael Deane,

          7  Bovis Land Lease; and Ashok Gupta, Natural Resources

          8  Defense Council.

          9                 Now you can decide who wants to speak

         10  first.  You know, you can have this little internal

         11  battle going on.  Choose who.

         12                 MR. FOX:  I believe I have been

         13  nominated to speak first.  My name is Bob Fox.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, could

         15  you move the mic closer to you, and if it is off, it

         16  is on.

         17                 MR. FOX:  My name is Bob Fox.  I am a

         18  partner in firm of Cook + Fox Architects in New York

         19  City.  I started working in New York City in 1966,

         20  and I have been involved in over 40 major, high-

         21  rise office buildings.  Being the project architect

         22  for Four Times Square, the first green high- rise

         23  building in New York, followed by the Reuters

         24  Building, Three Times Square, and I am now the

         25  project architect for a building called, One Bryant
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          2  Park, the new Bank of America Headquarters.

          3                 I was also the leader of a team to

          4  write guidelines, Green Environmental Responsive

          5  Guidelines for the Battery Park City Authority, and

          6  also for New York City Transit Authority.

          7                 I would like to also commend Russell

          8  Unger for his efforts on behalf of this legislation.

          9    I have been discussing this with Russell for over

         10  two years.  And he has been bending my arm and

         11  asking me very good questions, and saying, why can't

         12  we do this, for over two years.

         13                 I firmly believe that is way passed

         14  time for New York City to adopt LEED as a standard.

         15  New York City is a leader in the world in almost

         16  every arena that one could think of, and it is, at

         17  this point, almost irresponsible that it is not

         18  taking a leadership position in developing Green

         19  Buildings.

         20                 The One Bryant Park Building, and I

         21  think Jody Durst will speak to this, is going for

         22  the Platinum rating.  The new Goldman Sachs

         23  Headquarters, this building is over two million

         24  square feet, the Goldman Sachs Headquarters, is

         25  being built in Battery Park City is going for a Gold
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          2  rating.  And this is with the existing LEED

          3  standard.  This is not anything special for New York

          4  City.

          5                 It is a nationally accepted standard.

          6    There are thousands of projects that have

          7  registered for this across the country.  The rating

          8  system has 65 points.  To be certified requires only

          9  24.  To get Silver is 30, that is less than half.

         10  One does not have to pick any particular points out

         11  the 30, one can choose.  So, it is my belief, as

         12  architect with almost forty years of practice in New

         13  York, that Silver is easy.  Any competent team of

         14  architects, engineers, and builders can achieve a

         15  Silver rating.           The important thing here is

         16  that we have a limited amount of resources.  As

         17  wealthy as we are in New York, our resources are

         18  limited, even our water system is limited.  Our

         19  natural resources are really limited, and we are

         20  going to find very quickly that the cost of energy

         21  and the cost using these resources is going to

         22  skyrocket.  Especially in terms of our dependence on

         23  foreign oil to power our power plants and to power

         24  our vehicles.

         25                 So, I would just like to repeat that
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          2  it is time for us to take this leadership position.

          3  The citizens of New York City deserve it.  Thank

          4  you.

          5                 MR. DURST:  Good morning.  I am Jody

          6  Durst of the Durst Organization.  I presently serve

          7  as co-president.  The Durst Organization has been in

          8  existence for roughly 90 years now.  One of the

          9  significant messages that both my grandfather,

         10  father, and uncles passed along to the third

         11  generation, as we manage the Durst Organization,

         12  came early in our childhood, where we were taught

         13  always to leave a campsite in better condition then

         14  when we arrived there.  We are attempting to do the

         15  same thing as we develop projects in New York City.

         16                 Beginning about 17 years ago, The

         17  Durst Organization retrofitted their entire

         18  portfolio with respect to, with an eye toward any

         19  systems that consumed energy.  These retrofits

         20  included high efficiency lamps and ballast, high

         21  efficiency motors connected to variable frequency

         22  drives, and replacement of all chillers, due to

         23  efficiency and suspect refrigerants that were called

         24  into question with respect to their effects on the

         25  environment.  We used this experience in
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          2  retrofitting our buildings to design and build Four

          3  Times Square, which slightly preceded the LEED's

          4  criteria. But nonetheless, has received about 15

          5  environmental and design awards.  The question is

          6  frequently asked, why?  Why does the Durst

          7  Organization go through all the brain damage and

          8  monetary expenditure to bring along the level of

          9  technology, set a standard?

         10                 First and foremost, given the

         11  monumental pressures on our natural resources, and

         12  the substantial health issues facing our world

         13  today, the Durst Organization wants to do our part

         14  to establish a better world to live, work, and

         15  enjoy.

         16                 We are also convinced that the public

         17  not only needs, but wants environmental sensitivity.

         18    As such, design incorporating these improvements

         19  adds value to the asset.  So even though the Durst

         20  Organization wants to do the right thing, there is

         21  no question that there are monetary benefits for

         22  doing so.

         23                 And lastly, I just want to remind

         24  everyone that we are just simply out of time.

         25  Everyday that goes by where we do not adopt more
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          2  stringent, environmental requirements is another day

          3  where we are slaves to the various pressures that

          4  exist in the world today.  We are trying to do our

          5  part to raise awareness of these issues.

          6                 As Bob mentioned, we plan to use Four

          7  Times Square as a stepping stone for development at

          8  1 Bryant Park, where our next development should be

          9  better than the one before.  And both at One Bryant

         10  Park, and the apartment building that we are

         11  building on 57th Street, known as the Helena

         12  (phonetic), will utilize what we have learned

         13  before, and hopefully break new ground in creating

         14  much better projects.

         15                 In short, The Durst Organization

         16  supports Intro. Nos. 424- A and 438.  Thank you,

         17  324- A, sorry.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19                 MR. ALBANESE:  Yes, good morning.  My

         20  name is Russell Albanese, I am president of the

         21  Albanese Organization.  We are a 55- year- old

         22  development organization building residential,

         23  commercial, and institutional properties in the New

         24  York Metro area.

         25                 I am pleased to testify before you
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          2  this morning on behalf of proposal 324- A,

          3  legislation that would introduce LEED as a standard

          4  for all city- owned and city- funded buildings.

          5                 During the past four years, I have

          6  had the privilege to work with my colleagues in the

          7  research and development of the first Green, high-

          8  rise residential building, right here in New York

          9  City, in Battery Park City.  Thanks to the vision

         10  and foresight of our Governor, and leadership of the

         11  Battery Park City Authority, who developed their

         12  environmental guidelines under the stewardship of

         13  Bob Fox, with me today, in the late nineties.  I

         14  believe that our city is recognized as one of the

         15  leaders in sustainable urban design today.  And most

         16  importantly, we are help paving the way for a city

         17  to lead the country in finding solutions to the

         18  negative environmental impact of our built

         19  environment, and to improve quality of life in both

         20  indoor living spaces, working environments, learning

         21  environments, as well as our exterior environment.

         22                 My experience with LEED is two- fold.

         23    First, as a charter member of the board of

         24  directors of the New York Chapter of the United

         25  States Green Building Council, I have witnessed the
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          2  expediential growth of the U.S. Green Building

          3  Council, and its voluntary LEED program across the

          4  country over these past several years.  Private

          5  developers, public corporations, educational

          6  institutions, government institutions, all across

          7  the country are recognizing the benefits of the LEED

          8  standard.

          9                 LEED is a rating system that provides

         10  a framework for a design and development team to

         11  work with and to address environmental issues in a

         12  holistic approach, looking at energy, site

         13  utilization, indoor and outdoor quality, as well as

         14  conservation of natural resources, water quality,

         15  and how a building will operate into the future.

         16                 Secondly, I have direct experience in

         17  developing the Solair (phonetic), known as the

         18  nation's first Green, high- rise residential

         19  building, in Battery Park, and first- hand I have

         20  gone through the application and certification

         21  process, which has lead to a LEED gold rating.

         22                 Although we are not obligated to

         23  pursue LEED as a requirement of our Battery Park

         24  guidelines, we recognized the benefit to go through

         25  the process of certification, and we did
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          2  successfully achieve a LEED Gold rating.  I believe

          3  the first in New York State.

          4                 I believe that New York City would

          5  benefit greatly by adopting the LEED standard.  As

          6  it is a well established and recognized standard

          7  across the country, and one that could be easily

          8  understood and implemented by design and development

          9  teams.              Lastly, I believe that the

         10  general public is becoming more and more concerned,

         11  aware of environmental issues, and demanding that we

         12  improve our built environment.  At the Solair we

         13  experienced tremendous consumer demands and

         14  appreciation for a building that provides improved

         15  energy efficiency, improved indoor air quality, as

         16  well as a whole host of other environmental

         17  benefits.

         18                 It is critical that both private

         19  sector and public sector respond immediately and

         20  lead this market transformation that is taking

         21  place.  I commend the City Council for undertaking

         22  this effort, and I thank you again for this

         23  opportunity to testify today.  Thank you.

         24                 MR. DEANE:  Good Morning.  My name is

         25  Michael Deane, and I am a Senior Project Manager for
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          2  Bovis Land Lease, and I am presently involved on two

          3  LEED registered projects.  But, I am here today as a

          4  founding board member and current chair of the U.S.

          5  Green Building Council New York Chapter.

          6                 The U.S. Green Building Council of

          7  New York strongly supports Intro. 324- A.  We

          8  believe it will contribute to the health and well

          9  being of the residents of this City, while also

         10  contributing to the health and well being of the

         11  planet.  And, as the increasing body of data

         12  suggests, will do so with little or no first cost

         13  increase, and significant cost savings, over the

         14  life of the buildings.

         15                 There are now 126 completed and

         16  certified LEED buildings, and over 1,450 LEED

         17  registered buildings.  That is a building that

         18  intends to seek certification.  Of these, 24 percent

         19  are owned by local government, and 30 percent are

         20  owned by state and federal government.  It has now

         21  been documented that a LEED Silver building can be

         22  designed and built for between 0 and 2 percent cost

         23  increase, that is first cost increase, compared to a

         24  similar non- green building.

         25                 These buildings will have
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          2  significantly lower operating and maintenance costs,

          3  which will within a very few years offset any

          4  increased first costs.  They can also significantly

          5  reduce construction waste sent to landfills.  I

          6  recently learned of the total waste produced in New

          7  York City, 60 percent, 60 percent is construction

          8  waste.  On the project I am working on in Battery

          9  Park City, we intend to recycle between 75 and 85

         10  percent of our construction waste.  If every

         11  building in New York City did that, we would lower

         12  the total waste sent to landfill in New York by

         13  almost half.

         14                 There are, as you pointed out in

         15  introductory remarks, health benefits for

         16  individuals who live and work in Green Buildings.

         17  Studies have documented increased productivity in

         18  the work place, better test scores in school, lower

         19  absenteeism and so on.

         20                 On a macro level, reduced energy will

         21  slow global warming, and will increase cost savings

         22  to building owners and operators, and will reduce

         23  the use of non- renewable natural resources.

         24                 Because it is a new idea, there has

         25  been some resistance to Green Buildings.  Early on,
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          2  the federal government, including the Army, the

          3  Navy, and GSA, helped shift perceptions by mandating

          4  various sustainable programs.  In New York,

          5  Executive Order 111, the Green Building Tax Credit

          6  and the Battery Park City Guidelines have also

          7  played a significant role.  These programs have

          8  forced owners, designers, and builders to come to

          9  terms with what it means to build sustainably, and

         10  have led to a greater acceptance of Green

         11  principles.

         12                 The role of these guidelines in this

         13  Intro., if passed, to promote Green Building in New

         14  York City cannot be over emphasized.  Public

         15  agencies have a tremendous power to transform the

         16  market place, to change people's minds about what is

         17  possible, and what is truly affordable, and what the

         18  costs are to not build in a sustainable way.

         19                 Minds are changed incrementally, and

         20  as Green Building becomes more mainstream, it

         21  becomes easier, and less expensive, and  more

         22  accepted, until it finally becomes expected. It

         23  becomes the new norm.

         24                 This bill would significantly alter

         25  the built environment in New York City for the
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          2  better, and in so doing would save the City

          3  construction dollars and operating dollars.  It

          4  would reduce waste sent to landfill.  It would

          5  contribute to the health and well being of the

          6  people who live and work in city- owned and funded

          7  buildings.  And in a larger sense, it would help

          8  contribute to the health of the planet.

          9                 Moreover, it would set a positive

         10  example to other municipalities who may be

         11  considering similar legislation.  And by acting now,

         12  it will keep New York at the forefront of the

         13  sustainable building movement.  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         15  Wait, no, I know, but I just want to you, you

         16  addressed some of my financial concerns.  That was

         17  the little conversation I was having up here, and

         18  then you preceded to answer a lot of them.

         19                 MR. GUPTA:  Good morning, it is a

         20  pleasure to be here.  Thank you for holding this

         21  important hearing on Green Buildings.  It is a

         22  pleasure to share this panel with Bob, and Jody, and

         23  Russell, and Michael, who I have had a pleasure to

         24  work with over many years, in terms of really

         25  leading the charge nationally in this arena.  So,
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          2  what you are seeing here is New York private sector

          3  saying that this can be done, we are doing it.  The

          4  public sector must follow and use best practices,

          5  because that is the way to really address the

          6  economic and environmental issues that we now face.

          7                 I am here to testify on behalf of

          8  NRDC, Natural Resources Defense Council.  NRDC has

          9  been actively engaged with Green Building work

         10  starting with our own headquarter office here in the

         11  City, 15 years ago.

         12                 We are very supportive of the two

         13  bills we are here to talk about today, 324- A and

         14  438.  And think it is about time, and way past time,

         15  for New York to join the other cities and states to

         16  lead this charge.

         17                 The bills that have been introduced

         18  are consistent with New York City policies on

         19  energy, which means that we want to encourage people

         20  to use energy more efficiently to meet our demand,

         21  to lower prices, to have a more reliable

         22  electricity.  It is also consistent with our water

         23  usage policies, where we want to encourage people to

         24  consume less water so we can deal with the watershed

         25  issues and other related issues that we face with
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          2  water. And as was stated earlier, in terms of our

          3  policies on recycling and waste reduction, this

          4  policy is also totally consistent with that.

          5                 What this bill does, is integrates

          6  things we have been wanting to do on energy, and

          7  water, and materials, in one bill.  And that is a

          8  very smart way to approach this topic rather than

          9  trying to do one thing at a time, as we sometimes do

         10  in our policy work.

         11                 This bill is also going to be very

         12  good as it has been stated for lowering operating

         13  costs.  The emphasis on first cost really hides what

         14  is really behind the reason for doing this, which is

         15  what is it doing in terms of operating cost,

         16  infrastructure costs, and costs to society.  When

         17  you look at all of the costs that are dealt with in

         18  terms of the impacts that buildings have, these

         19  bills and Green Building legislation is really

         20  saying, let's be very, very smart about how we are

         21  investing up front, in terms of buildings.  These

         22  buildings are going to be around for a long time,

         23  and it is important to design them properly up

         24  front, so they can have minimal cost in terms of

         25  operations and all the impacts they have on our
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          2  infrastructure.                              These

          3  bills also will be great from the point of view of

          4  public health and workers who work in these

          5  buildings.  One the most important reasons for doing

          6  Green Buildings is to improve indoor air quality,

          7  and that cannot be forgotten.  It is sometimes hard

          8  to estimate on dollar terms what the benefits are

          9  there, but the benefits are huge in terms of non-

         10  monetary benefits that people cannot easily

         11  quantify.  And of course, from an environmental

         12  prospective, in terms of global warming, or resource

         13  depletion, and all of the other things we worry

         14  about on the environmental side, these bills are

         15  critical and essential.

         16                 The last point I want to make is

         17  really that it is time for the City Council to take

         18  the lead on these issues, because, unfortunately, we

         19  have not had that leadership in the Administration

         20  over the last three years.  There has been a lot of

         21  good discussion, a lot of good intention, but really

         22  on this issue we have not had the leadership that we

         23  need and therefore it is especially necessary that

         24  we move forward today on these bills.

         25                 LEED offers a flexible approach, as
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          2  has been stated before, it is totally doable as in

          3  terms of the City buildings. And the excuses that we

          4  have heard today in terms of why we cannot do this

          5  are really just that, they are excuses and everyone

          6  of them can be addressed, and it is time really to

          7  act rather than to say why we cannot do this at the

          8  present.

          9                 I will stop there, and I, and I am

         10  sure the panel is happy to take your questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         12  You explained a little, so this question is probably

         13  for either Bob Fox, Jody, or Russell.  How would you

         14  respond to the Administration's concern that LEED

         15  may not be appropriate for New York City and all

         16  building types?  Anyone who wants to answer that,

         17  can just jump right in.

         18                 MR. DEANE:  I would actually like to

         19  speak to that. LEED was developed as a menu of

         20  possibilities.  There are many more points than are

         21  needed for even high levels of certification.  Not

         22  only that, the LEED program is evolving.  There are

         23  a number of new LEED programs for particular

         24  building types.  I have some concern that there are

         25  going to be too many.  My joke is that pretty soon
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          2  we are going to have a LEED for drug stores.

          3                 But the fact of the matter is that

          4  the basic LEED rating system for new buildings has

          5  enough breath in it that it can absorb different

          6  climate zones, different environments, different

          7  urban, suburban, rural areas, and just the gentlemen

          8  sitting at this table are evidence that you can

          9  build a LEED solid Gold, LEED Platinum building in

         10  New York City with the current program as it is.

         11  And, the Council, my Green Building Council, spent

         12  the better part of a year, thinking about whether we

         13  needed a LEED urban, and we came to the conclusion

         14  that we did not.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You said

         16  with the current program as it is.  What do you mean

         17  by the current program?

         18                 MR. DEANE:  The LEED program that we

         19  are operating under now is called LEED version 2.1.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         21                 MR. DEANE:  There was a LEED pilot

         22  1.0, there was a 2.0, there is soon to be a 2.2.  Up

         23  through, from the 1.0 to the 2.2 there have been

         24  certain administrative changes, minor tweaks,

         25  documentation requirement changes, and so forth.
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          2  There will soon be a LEED 3.0, which will

          3  holistically address the whole program. It will

          4  evolve.  It will evolve, it will evolve in response

          5  to need, it will try to fix things that are broken,

          6  it will try to not fix things that are not broken.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  It is kind

          8  of like Windows that keeps updating itself.

          9                 MR. DEANE:  And in addition to that,

         10  there are different LEED programs, there is one out

         11  now for existing buildings, which focuses more on

         12  operation and retrofitting of existing systems.

         13  There is a LEED program for core and shell, which

         14  addresses high- rise in a complimentary program for

         15  commercial interiors for tenant fit out.  So, these

         16  issues are being addressed within the context of

         17  what they think of as a LEED family of products.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         19  Bob.

         20                 MR. FOX:  LEED was started in the

         21  early nineties by a group of very smart people who

         22  figured out what the basic attitude ought to be

         23  toward measuring Green Buildings.  They started, it

         24  was based on a three- story building in the suburbs.

         25    So if you did a three- story building in the
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          2  suburbs, LEED 1.0, you could score very well.  If

          3  you were working on a high- rise building in

          4  Manhattan, you were in trouble.

          5                 It has evolved to, as Michael was

          6  saying, there are lots of different types of LEED

          7  now.  There is LEED for interiors.

          8                 Two years ago, when the members of

          9  the U.S. Green Building House of New York were

         10  talking to the Council, the Council Staff, staff

         11  said, why do we not write some guidelines, why don't

         12  we come up some Green guidelines for New York City

         13  buildings.

         14                 And we said very emphatically, no

         15  there is enough guidelines out there.  There are

         16  enough people who have written guidelines, they have

         17  been implemented, and they are being used. But to

         18  adopt a national standard is much more important to

         19  New York, rather than have our own standards, which

         20  someone in California might say, well their not

         21  really national, just good for New York.

         22                 So, by adopting LEED, there is also

         23  an opportunity for New York City to have a voice in

         24  change.  And it will change over time, there is no

         25  question.  It is being changed right now, as we
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          2  speak.  There are different committees, very smart

          3  people, figuring out how to best do this.  And how

          4  to make it more difficult each year, how do we raise

          5  the standards.  Once people figure out how to do it,

          6  down here, we should make it better all the time,

          7  and I am sure New York City wants to be better all

          8  the time.  But by adopting it you get an opportunity

          9  to critique it and be part of the change.

         10                 MR. DURST:  One other comment.

         11  Certainly, New York City does have its own unique

         12  problems and issues, but so do Houston, Los Angeles,

         13  Chicago, and San Francisco, as well as a number of

         14  other big cities that have gone ahead and adopted

         15  LEED. As a builder, developer, manager of office

         16  buildings it would be very helpful to me to have a

         17  consultant, to know that a national consultant is

         18  familiar with whatever codes, requirements, et

         19  cetera, are required in New York.  So that if I have

         20  an engineer who has worked mostly in Los Angeles,

         21  and he comes to New York, and wants to design a

         22  system for me, he is going to be, assuming that New

         23  York adopts LEED, he will be familiar with the

         24  requirements in this City, rather than having to

         25  come up to speed as to what is peculiar to New York.
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          2    So, a national standard would be very, very

          3  important to establish in New York.  Thanks.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          5  Mr. Albanese, a little bird has whispered in my ear

          6  that you possibly changed your opinion of Green

          7  Building and LEED during the course of designing and

          8  building the Solair.  Is that true, and if so why?

          9                 MR. ALBANESE:  No I do not think that

         10  is true.  I never, from the beginning, the beginning

         11  of the design we - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  What about

         13  before that?

         14                 MR. ALBANESE:  Well I think before

         15  that was one of maybe an opinion of ignorance, where

         16  we had over the years always looked at energy

         17  efficiency measures, and ways to build the best

         18  mouse trap out there.  But immediately upon seeking

         19  after the Battery Park City proposal, the RFP that

         20  was out in January of 2000, we looked upon the

         21  guidelines that Battery Park developed with great

         22  enthusiasm.

         23                 And the guidelines that Battery Park

         24  developed are really based on the framework of LEED.

         25    This really adapted, what they tried to do is
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          2  adapt the guidelines of LEED at the time, that

          3  version, for high- rise residential setting.  I

          4  think we have been very consistent, and if anything,

          5  since, through the whole development process in

          6  learning about it, and actually going through it,

          7  and demonstrating that yes it can be done, and at

          8  great, I believe, benefit and long term value, as a

          9  developer and owner, I think we have been very

         10  consistent in our whole approach.            CHAIRPERSON

         11  PROVENZANO:  Thank you very much. Councilwoman

         12  Brewer, you have questions?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         14  very much.  A couple of questions.  One the numbers

         15  I think that you use, in terms of 126 and ,1450,

         16  that was New York City or nationally?  You talked I

         17  think about some numbers.

         18                 MR. DEANE:  That is national, I got

         19  that from the latest information I could get from

         20  the U.S. CBC National on Friday, it literally

         21  changes daily.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, so it

         23  was national.

         24                 MR. DEANE:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And the other
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          2  question is why wouldn't a builder, this is my

          3  ignorance, participate in a Green Building program?

          4  What, obviously you all do, and that is to your

          5  credit, but why wouldn't somebody do that?  Because

          6  they are not as good as the Durst Organization.

          7                 MR. DURST:  No, it does not have

          8  anything to do with being good or bad.  It just, if

          9  people do not understand, that they assume it is

         10  going to cost more money, it is going to be more

         11  work, which it is.  But people have the

         12  misconception that it is going be much more

         13  expensive.  Number one, the first in cost is not as

         14  much as people picture, but then they also do not

         15  calculate, as Russell pointed out, the operational

         16  benefits to having spent the money up front.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

         18                 MR. GUPTA:  Add on that.   Basically,

         19  what happens when you do market transformation, is

         20  you have early adopters.  And I think what the Durst

         21  did, was really demonstrate what can be done.  What

         22  Battery Park City did with their guidelines was

         23  said, we also want to require it.  The Green

         24  Building Tax Credit provided incentives, but these

         25  bills that you are looking at today, will do is also
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          2  provide market conditions for more people to look at

          3  this issue.  And what you do is you get the 10, 20,

          4  30 percent market share in the next five years

          5  through this process.  So you always have this

          6  process where some people will lead, for a lot of

          7  good reasons, and others then have to follow based

          8  on either incentives or requirements.  And the role

          9  of government for their buildings is also to provide

         10  that next boost, so that all private sector

         11  buildings will eventually be doing this.

         12                 So, government stepping up is very

         13  important. Government providing incentive for

         14  private sector developers, above and beyond those

         15  that early adopters is very important to have market

         16  transformation.  So this is a real critical need to

         17  have the takeoff we want in terms of Green

         18  Buildings.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I mean, I

         20  support it, obviously, but I was thinking I know the

         21  Mayflower and the new owner of the Mayflower has got

         22  a very large site, as an example. And that would be

         23  a place where I would hope it would be a Green

         24  Building.

         25                 At the Helena, when I met with, I do
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          2  not know if it was your father or your uncle, when I

          3  was talking to him regarding the Helena, there was a

          4  portion of the building that I think he wanted to,

          5  in a sense, make Green.  It was in the basement or

          6  something, I do not know we talked more about smart

          7  buildings.  I am more familiar with technology.  But

          8  there was something that he wanted to do in

          9  addition, I think, that he felt it was too much of a

         10  pioneer and not.  Do you know what I am talking

         11  about?  Maybe not.  It was some other aspect of the

         12  building that he wanted to make, I would say it was

         13  more of smart building on the technology side

         14  perhaps than on the Green side.  I do not remember.

         15                 MR. DURST:  Depending on when you

         16  spoke to him.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  About a year

         18  ago.

         19                 MR. DURST:  It may have been the

         20  Black Water System.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  It was.

         22                 MR. DURST:  It was.  And, we

         23  ultimately figured out a way of making the Black

         24  Water System work in the building.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay,  and
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          2  then the final question is, there are two bills

          3  here.  Obviously, one is the one that you have been

          4  talking about, and the other one is the expediting

          5  issue.  Buildings' Department testified that they

          6  were concerned that if buildings that are Green

          7  moved more quickly that that would slow down the

          8  other buildings.  What do you think about that?

          9                 MR. DURST:  I think that would be

         10  great.  It would encourage people to build Green.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         12  very much.  Thank you Madam Chair, I agree.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         14  Just a comment, you can comment on the comment if

         15  you want, as I am sitting here listening to all your

         16  comments on Green Building and LEED, and what have

         17  you, I am relating, for whatever reason, some of

         18  your comments to our current revisal or remodeling

         19  of our Building Code.  I know that all of you are

         20  aware of all the hard work that is going into that.

         21  But I am kind of, you know, relating your comments

         22  to our Code, all the hard work that is going on now.

         23    And I think that is what raised the question when

         24  I asked you, when you said current program, I just

         25  wanted to clarify one from the other.
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          2                 Council Member Jackson has some

          3  questions.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you,

          5  Madam Chair. Either one or more of you spoke to the

          6  different levels of LEED, as far as certification,

          7  you have a certified, I think, Silver, Gold,

          8  Platinum, and I assume Platinum is the highest

          9  rating.  And one of you indicated that it is very

         10  easy to obtain the Silver rating because all you

         11  need is, I think, 30 points out of 60.  Is that

         12  correct?

         13                 And I was reading, obviously, all of

         14  you are in favor of it, and unfortunately, I am

         15  going to have to leave before I hear testimony from

         16  people that oppose these two pieces of legislation,

         17  but one is the New York Suburban and Lumber

         18  Association.  Because the LEED's indicate that the

         19  wood must be certified by the FSC, the Forest

         20  Stewardship Council.  My question is under the

         21  points system, could an organization use non-

         22  certified FSC wood and still be in compliance with

         23  LEED?  Can someone answer that?

         24                 MR. FOX:  Yes, I can and most

         25  certainly, they can. FSC certified, using FSC
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          2  certified lumber will give you a point. It is not a

          3  requirement.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, so one

          5  point, or the value is more than a point?

          6                 MR. FOX:  No it is a point.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  A point.

          8                 MR. FOX:  A point.  That is the idea.

          9    There are five broad categories, some of which

         10  have more points than others, depending on how,

         11  depending on the substance of the point.  There are

         12  a lot of points in energy.  There are a lot of

         13  points in indoor air quality.  There are not so many

         14  points in water.

         15                 But I would say that the FSC credit

         16  is not used as much as it might be, because there is

         17  still a cost difference between FSC certified

         18  material and not.  Although, I would bet that it

         19  would be coming down.  So the buildings that I am

         20  working on, for instance, are not using FSC

         21  certified lumber and we are expecting a LEED Gold

         22  rating.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay,

         24  because as a late person just reading that, I read

         25  from I guess the document, even though it did not
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          2  say this, but this is what I gathered from it, that

          3  their going to be so negatively impacted as a result

          4  of LEED. That is why I needed ask that question,

          5  even though I am not here, I am not going to be here

          6  in order to listen to their testimony. I appreciate

          7  the response there.

          8                 But also, Gale Brewer asked about the

          9  costs, and then our briefing document, it indicated

         10  certain studies that indicate that the initial

         11  construction cost, in some respects, is not greater

         12  in order to move into a Green, a LEED certified

         13  building.  In my opinion, and correct me if I am

         14  wrong, and really this is Durst, you own and manage

         15  some of your own property, if I am going to build,

         16  not only with my own money, but if I am going to

         17  build it, and I am going to own, and I am going to

         18  manage property, then in the long run I am saving my

         19  company money because of the energy efficiency of

         20  the building.  Isn't that correct?  So, are you not

         21  in the long saving money?

         22                 MR. DURST:  We are not saving

         23  ourselves money, we are saving the tenants money.

         24  But in effect, we are making the property more

         25  valuable by doing that.  Because if the tenant comes
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          2  in knowing that his operating costs are going to be

          3  a dollar lower than the building that he is also

          4  considering, then it makes our building more

          5  desirable and perhaps the rent up period would be

          6  shorter, and that helps us.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And we did

          8  not even talk about the environmental aspects of it,

          9  that is just the monetary aspects.

         10                 MR. DURST:  Correct.  Yes.

         11                 MR. DEANE:  If I may add to that.

         12  The cost savings for owners, who are long- term

         13  owners, and in particular the City, if you build a

         14  building you are going to operate it, you

         15  want to look at the long- term savings, and your

         16  statement is exactly right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I am sorry,

         18  would you just restate your name, and who you are

         19  representing again?  When you speak if you could

         20  just say that, there are five of you, and when this

         21  is recorded, people do not know what voices belongs

         22  to whom. So, if you do not mind, what is your name,

         23  and who you are representing, again.

         24                 MR. DEANE:  Michael Deane the U.S.

         25  Green Building Council New York Chapter.  And what
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          2  I, well the statement stands that you do save money

          3  over time.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I think that

          5  some of you have come to the same conclusion through

          6  your experiences, and I have not been involved in

          7  this, but for a short period of time from a

          8  legislative point of view.  Obviously, you were

          9  sitting here when I raised some of the questions to

         10  the City's representative.  It seems as though that

         11  some of you have come to the same conclusion that I

         12  have.  Why aren't we out front on this, and we

         13  should be? Is there any practical reason, in your

         14  opinion, why the City has not taken a more assertive

         15  approach in this, in order so that we will be more

         16  an environmental- friendly city, and also in the

         17  long run save energy, and natural resources, and

         18  money?  And just identify yourself before you

         19  respond.

         20                 MR. GUPTA:  Yes, Ashok Gupta from

         21  NRDC. I think it is a matter of change.  Basically,

         22  especially, when you have compartmentalized work

         23  being done on energy, and water, and resource use

         24  and trying to bring them together, I think the

         25  integration has been harder and taking longer.  So,
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          2  I think there is interest in supporting Green

          3  Buildings, but basically there has not been any

          4  leadership, in terms of trying to bring these issues

          5  together and use Green Buildings as a vehicle to

          6  move the City's energy policy, and water policy, and

          7  recycling policies together in tandem.

          8                 So, I think it is mostly the standard

          9  thing that happens in large institutions that

         10  different people are supporting different pieces and

         11  have not been able to bring it together under one

         12  umbrella, in terms of moving these issues.  And it

         13  is actually cheaper and smarter to do integrated

         14  work on buildings where you can address all of these

         15  issues at the same time.  I think it is not

         16  anybody's necessarily fault, or it is just in the

         17  nature of things.  So there has been a lot of effort

         18  in the last three years, but it just has not really

         19  jelled.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  My final

         21  question to Madam Chair is, you clearly indicated to

         22  me as a layperson that in order to be Silver

         23  certified, that is 30 points out of 60.  And

         24  obviously, certified is at what 15 points or 20

         25  points, and what is Gold and what is Platinum?  So I

                                                            69

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  can get an idea before I run out the door.  Do you

          3  mind identifying yourself, please, if you do not

          4  mind?

          5                 MR. FOX:  Bob Fox, Cook + Fox

          6  Architects.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Go ahead.

          8                 MR. FOX:  I am now going from memory

          9  and perhaps I can get an assist from Russell.  I was

         10  quoting from the Core and Shell LEED certification,

         11  but the certified level would be 24 out of 65, 24

         12  points.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  For what,

         14  for what level?

         15                 MR. FOX:  For certified.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  This is

         17  certified level, 24 out of 60, okay.

         18                 MR. FOX:  I thought this LEED

         19  document was easy. Okay.  Of the basic LEED 2.1,

         20  which most people use, the one we are using on One

         21  Bryant Park is LEED Core and Shell, but on the basic

         22  2.1, there are 69 points.  To be certified requires

         23  26 points.   To be Silver requires 33 points.  To be

         24  Gold requires 39 points.  And Platinum is 52.

         25                 I will tell you that out of the 69
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          2  there are probably eight points that one could not

          3  get in New York City. They just do not apply.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, out of

          5  69 you are talking about 61 really.

          6                 MR. FOX:  Yes, 61.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  But

          8  to be just certified verses Silver or Gold, you

          9  would think that is like very, very easy.  Would all

         10  of you agree that it is very, very easy.

         11                 ALL:  Yes.

         12                 MR. FOX:  Bob Fox, Cook + Fox, very,

         13  very, very easy.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         15  I am sorry just identify yourself.

         16                 MR. DEANE:  Michael Deane, U.S. Green

         17  Building Council.  There is a flip side to the point

         18  thing.  While there may be six or so that are

         19  impossible, or extremely difficult to get in New

         20  York, you get points for being near major

         21  transportation routes.  The are a couple that are

         22  slam- dunks in New York, and you get them by falling

         23  off a chair.  So, it evens itself out.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Slam- dunks

         25  are nice to watch, especially in basketball.  Thank
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          2  you.  Thank you Madam Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

          4  Member Jackson referred to the New York and Suburban

          5  Lumber Association, we do have testimony from them

          6  which will be entered into the record, although they

          7  are not testifying here today.

          8                 Council Member Comrie has questions.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you

         10  Madam Chair.  The first question out of curiosity,

         11  which eight points would not apply to New York City,

         12  that you just mentioned?  Is it because of climate,

         13  or just, do you which any of those eight points?

         14                 MR. FOX:  One of them on the project

         15  that we are currently working on would deal with

         16  building re- use.  One gets a point if you re- use a

         17  significant amount of an existing building. If you

         18  have an empty site, in the case of the one that we

         19  are working on, you cannot get that point.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  That leads to

         21  my actual, original question, just for the entire

         22  panel, you were talking on primarily new buildings,

         23  but what is your thought on retrofitting older

         24  buildings.  You know, the City has a lot of leases

         25  and a lot of buildings that are in long- term lease,
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          2  or buildings that they have been in for sometime.

          3  Do you think that this is applicable and doable to

          4  retrofit all the buildings, or bring them to LEED

          5  standard, or to at least basic LEED standard?  And

          6  what would that cost entail?

          7                 MR. GUPTA:  Basically, there is a new

          8  product being developed by LEED for existing

          9  buildings that would allow you to score points for

         10  energy efficiency, water conservation, procurement

         11  policies, and other things for existing buildings.

         12  So the LEED we are talking about today would not be

         13  the same LEED product that would apply to existing

         14  buildings, but there will soon be a product that

         15  will apply to existing buildings, and we can talk

         16  about existing buildings in terms of what should be

         17  done as we go forward.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Do you think

         19  our bill helps to address retrofitting of existing

         20  buildings or?

         21                 MR. DEANE:  It does.  There is some

         22  threshold, and it may be 30 percent or some other

         23  percent.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I am sorry

         25  you have to identify your name please.
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          2                 MR. DEANE:  Okay, Michael Deane, U.S.

          3  Green Building Council.  LEED for new construction

          4  is actually LEED for new construction and

          5  significant renovations.  So many of the City

          6  projects that would be covered by this bill, would

          7  be covered by LEED, even if they were renovations.

          8  But as Ashok said, there is another LEED product,

          9  which could be adapted for existing buildings, and

         10  LEED recognizes, USCDC recognizes, that that is a

         11  tremendously larger market.

         12                 The other thing that that product

         13  does, is it focuses more on the ongoing operations

         14  and maintenance of buildings, so that you operate it

         15  in a sustainable way, which would also have

         16  significant benefits.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So, even if

         18  you have not been able to convert, if you try to

         19  operate the building in a sustainable way you can

         20  qualify for LEED credits.

         21                 MR. DEANE:  Well, you earn points

         22  under LEED EB for the way that you operate and

         23  maintain your building.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  Just a

         25  question that Council Member Jackson brought up an
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          2  issue that I was going to bring up about the lumber,

          3  but the use of materials how is that designated to

          4  be LEED, a LEED goal standard, or a non- LEED

          5  standard, how do you make those specifications?

          6                 MR. GUPTA:  Again, because of LEED is

          7  a menu system and you get points, so for recycled

          8  content, you know, if you use some much material of

          9  recycled content, you can get points, if you get

         10  certified wood you can get points.  So they are a

         11  menu, and you get points for products that you

         12  purchase that meet certain criteria.  And, so you do

         13  not have do them, there is flexibility in the

         14  systems.  From the materials issues it is basically

         15  issues of recycle ability, certification in terms of

         16  wood, in terms of toxicity of the materials, and so

         17  there are various points you can get in the

         18  materials section under LEED for buying the right

         19  kinds of products that have low impact on people,

         20  who work and reside in buildings, as well as impacts

         21  on the natural environment.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  These

         23  things are self- certified by the person that is

         24  doing the building, or does LEED come out and

         25  actually check?
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          2                 MR. DEANE:  The process works where

          3  you register your intent to seek certification at

          4  the beginning or typically early on in the project.

          5  And through the course of the project with all the

          6  points that you have elected to attain, there are

          7  documentation requirements, and over the life of the

          8  project as you are building it, you collect the

          9  documentation.  At the end of the project, just when

         10  the building is ready for occupancy, the

         11  documentation is submitted to the U.S. Green

         12  Building Council. They review it, and they bless

         13  your project in the points that you have attained.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, thank

         15  you.  Now what is the average cost differential to

         16  build, just for a new building verses if you wanted

         17  to build it to make the Platinum standard as opposed

         18  to not building to a standard at all?

         19                 MR. DEANE:  This is my favorite

         20  question.  This is everyone's favorite question.

         21  One of the most interesting slides that I ever saw

         22  at a USGBC presentation was a graph of buildings

         23  that were built that attained LEED certification,

         24  and how many points they achieved, and how much they

         25  cost.  And where you might have expected it to be a
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          2  curve going upward as you got more points, it was

          3  actually all over the map.  You could get a Gold

          4  building that costs less on per square foot basis

          5  than a certified building. And what people realize

          6  from that, that the question is more expensive then

          7  what?  If you start with a standard idea of a level

          8  of quality for your building and then try to Green

          9  it, you can often do it for little or no cost

         10  premium.  So, it is a little more complex than how

         11  much does Green cost, because it depends on what

         12  kind of Green you are implementing into what kind of

         13  a building.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  Thank

         15  you.  I understand, that they just told me that two

         16  people on the next panel will have more information

         17  on that subject, so I will not burden you with

         18  asking a lot questions outside of your normal field.

         19    I want to appreciate, and thank you for coming,

         20  and testifying, and enlightening us today.  Thank

         21  you.  Thank you Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  And since

         23  there are not any more Council Members, I guess

         24  there are not any more questions. You have a

         25  question?
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          2                 MR. FOX:  I would like to answer one

          3  of the other questions if I could.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, please

          5  identify yourself if you can.

          6                 MR. FOX:  Bob Fox, Cook + Fox

          7  Architects.  There was a question about the Building

          8  Department, and I would like to say that in my

          9  almost 40 years, I do not think there has ever been

         10  better leadership at the Building Department than

         11  Patricia Lancaster.  It is very different, and it is

         12  wonderful.

         13                 In the re- writing of the Code, there

         14  is a separate committee, the Sustainable Design

         15  Committee, chaired by Debra Taylor, an architect who

         16  is here.  And there are a number of professionals

         17  with very different representation, engineers,

         18  architects, builders, who are helping to insert the

         19  right language in the new Code that will be adopted

         20  some time in the future.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Boy, I wish

         22  you would have said this when I raised the issue,

         23  and later I will tell you why, but proceed.

         24                 MR. FOX:  One of the things that was

         25  not mentioned n the briefing document, the largest
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          2  landlord in our country has adopted LEED Silver as

          3  their standard.   This is the GSA, the General

          4  Services Administration.  All new buildings being

          5  built by the GSA, and they are going to build an

          6  awful lot more than New York City, are required to

          7  be LEED Silver.

          8                 And lastly, I would like to comment

          9  on Jody Durst's comment on the campsite, leave the

         10  campsite better than you found it.  We are have the

         11  opportunity to leave our City a better place for our

         12  children, and this is a great way to do it.  If we

         13  do not do something like this, our City will not, we

         14  will not be leaving a better campsite.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         16  I am sure, Commissioner Lancaster, there are some

         17  folks here from Department of Buildings, so they

         18  will certainly relay your comments.  And I agree

         19  with you, I think she is fantastic and doing a

         20  wonderful job. I thank all of you gentlemen for

         21  being here today.

         22                 All right, the next panel consists of

         23  Greg Kats, are you here, Greg?  John Amatruda, Scott

         24  Frank, Stephen Boese, what about Jeremy Reiss, are

         25  you here?  This way we will have five folks, and
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          2  five on the next panel, it kind of evens things out

          3  a little bit.  Okay who wants to start?  Good,

          4  identify yourself please?

          5                 MR. FRANK:  My name is Scott Frank, I

          6  am a professional engineer, and I am an associate

          7  partner with the firm Jaros, Bomb, and Boles.  We

          8  are an 85- year- old mechanical, electrical

          9  consulting engineering firm based in New York City.

         10  We have had the privilege of being involved with

         11  several projects recently, with significant Green

         12  Building objectives, including the latest Durst

         13  project, One Bryant Park, and the redevelopment of

         14  World Trade Center Seven, The Freedom Tower, also at

         15  the World Trade Center site, and I was also involved

         16  with the drafting of the sustainable design

         17  guidelines for the World Trade Center site, which

         18  are based on the LEED rating system.

         19                 I am testifying on behalf of the U.S.

         20  Green Building Council.  I am the Vice- Chair and

         21  founding board member of the New York Chapter.

         22                 The LEED rating system by the U.S.

         23  Green Building Council has been demonstrated

         24  throughout the United States, including within the

         25  City of New York, to be a reasonable and appropriate
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          2  methodology for quantifying the overall performance

          3  of buildings with regard to this issue.  Satisfying

          4  the requirements- -  excuse me - -  Satisfying the

          5  requirements of the LEED rating system can be

          6  achieved for a modest increase in initial capital

          7  cost, with a reduction in annual operations costs,

          8  reduce energy costs, and reduced water and sewer

          9  charges.

         10                 More difficult at this time to

         11  quantify, is the potential benefit to worker

         12  productivity through decreased absenteeism, a

         13  reduced work task distraction as a result of

         14  deficiencies in the quality of the indoor

         15  environment, including lighting quality, access to

         16  daylight, air quality, temperature control, et

         17  cetera.

         18                 While the LEED rating system is by

         19  definition a metric that is intended to apply to all

         20  types of buildings, and to buildings located

         21  throughout the United States, it is therefore not

         22  highly optimized for the application to dense urban

         23  context. Without limitations come some shortcomings

         24  when applying the system to buildings located within

         25  the City of New York.  However, when compared with
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          2  the alternative of creating a customized New York

          3  City specific system, several factors should be

          4  considered.

          5                 As you heard on the previous panel,

          6  the LEED rating system is under constant revision in

          7  order to stay abreast of the rapidly and ever-

          8  changing science and technology associated Green

          9  Building best practices.  The U.S. Green Building

         10  Council through its four thousand- organization

         11  membership nation wide has the necessary resources,

         12  organizational infrastructure, and capabilities to

         13  manage this significant and challenging task.

         14                 The U.S. Green Building Council is

         15  under development with several new LEED products.

         16  You also heard something about this in the previous

         17  panel.  These include a LEED system specifically

         18  designed for Core and Shell building developers,

         19  this is currently being implemented on World Trade

         20  Seven and One Bryant Park.  LEED for commercial

         21  interiors, a system specifically designed for the

         22  renovation and alteration of building interiors

         23  without impacting the base building or Core and

         24  shell.  LEED for existing buildings, a system

         25  designed to influence the ongoing operations and
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          2  management of existing building stock, and ongoing

          3  dialogue about a LEED urban rating system, including

          4  efforts within the New York Chapter of the U.S.

          5  Green Building Council.

          6                 Therefore, passage of Intro. 324- A,

          7  considering all factors, is a prudent and practical

          8  step forward towards implementing the environmental

          9  performance of buildings in New York City.

         10                 Further, passage of this bill is the

         11  first of several essential steps required by the

         12  City of New York to reduce the detrimental

         13  environmental impacts currently associated with the

         14  construction and operation of commercial and

         15  institutional buildings within the City.  The

         16  effects of this bill, by fostering wide scale

         17  implementation of the environmental measures

         18  contained in a LEED rating system, in addition to

         19  positively impacting City owned and City- funded

         20  buildings directly will be to assist in a market

         21  transformation throughout the building industry by

         22  bringing best environmental practices into the realm

         23  of standard practice.

         24                 For all sectors of this market, this

         25  will be accomplished by reducing the barriers that
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          2  currently do exist to achieving best possible

          3  environmental performance, through the increased

          4  education and practical experience that this bill

          5  will facilitate in the context of the construction

          6  of city- owned and city- funded buildings.  Thank

          7  you.

          8                 MR. BOESE:  Hello, I am Steve Boese

          9  from Healthy Schools Network.  Our comments are

         10  going to be focused on 324- A and its implication

         11  for schools and children.  We see 324 as having a

         12  very positive impact on the health of children, on

         13  the learning environment for children, on the

         14  environmental health of children and all the

         15  building occupants in the school, the teachers, the

         16  staff, and all people who are in a school building.

         17  We are focused on children's health and learning.

         18                 The first part of the testimony, I am

         19  not going to read through it all, the first part of

         20  the testimony talks about our research of others

         21  that shows how Green Building, what we call the

         22  healthy and high performance school, improves test

         23  scores, improves student achievement, it improves

         24  attendance, it has a positive impact on the health

         25  of children.  Enactment of having a healthy and high
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          2  performance schools in the City would have a

          3  positive impact on the childhood asthma epidemic,

          4  which you know is of alarming proportion in this

          5  City, because of improved indoor air quality and

          6  reduced asthma triggers in the school environment.

          7                 So, what we have done is we have

          8  submitted for you some of that research, summaries

          9  of that research, both our own and others that shows

         10  how not only that a poor school facility, an

         11  environmentally unhealthy, poor school facility

         12  impedes learning, causes problems with attendance,

         13  and is a contributor to a host of children's

         14  illnesses.  The Green school is a healthy and high

         15  performance school will improve test scores, and

         16  improves the learning environment for children.

         17                 We note that in New York State and

         18  across the country, there are efforts being made to,

         19  just as we talked about LEED being used in

         20  municipalities and in commercial development across

         21  the country, we also note that schools across the

         22  country are now being built Green.

         23                 Here in New York State our

         24  Commissioner, State Commissioner of Education,

         25  Richard Mills, and NYSERDA President, Peter Smith,
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          2  recently agreed to develop Green School Design

          3  Guidelines for New York State schools.  This is just

          4  the beginning to be under development now, but this

          5  is a promising new development that when implemented

          6  will provide the first comprehensive set of design

          7  guidelines uniquely tailored to the demands of New

          8  York Schools.

          9                 In California, the California

         10  Collaborative for High Performance Schools is

         11  probably the most notable example of Green schools

         12  and high performance school effort to date.  They

         13  have in there a State Executive Agencies, as well as

         14  a collaboration with education, environmental

         15  construction, and other groups that have developed

         16  these guidelines.  These guidelines have been

         17  adopted by the Los Angeles unified school district,

         18  a school district in San Francisco, and many others

         19  as well.  So, the second largest school district in

         20  the state, Los Angeles, has adopted healthy and high

         21  performance Green schools, as well as many others in

         22  California, and others in many around the country.

         23  Also, across the river in New Jersey, by Executive

         24  Order, New Jersey has required that all newly

         25  constructed schools meet LEED standards, or to build
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          2  Green or healthy, high performance schools.

          3                 In "No Child Left Behind," our

          4  Senator Clinton, put in an amendment that define

          5  healthy and high performance school is important to

          6  the education of youth and students, and calls for a

          7  grant program, which unfortunately has not been

          8  funded, and a study of school facilities on student

          9  health and learning.  This is important because it

         10  sets a federal standard and a federal definition for

         11  healthy and high performance schools.

         12                 Our central points are this in

         13  regards to this particular legislation.  In view of

         14  their clear demonstrated value to children's health,

         15  or Green, and healthy, and high performance schools

         16  and in view of the progress already being made on

         17  the federal and state levels and by other

         18  municipalities, Healthy Schools Network supports

         19  324- A, as it will require New York City to build

         20  healthy, productive, and cost effective school

         21  facilities.

         22                 Second, we also appreciate and

         23  support the recently added provision to this

         24  legislation that would permit use of the

         25  aforementioned New York State Develop Green

                                                            87

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Buildings Guidelines for schools once completed.  If

          3  properly developed, these guidelines will be

          4  specific to educational facilities in New York, and

          5  therefore, well tailored to protecting the

          6  environmental health and education of New York State

          7  students, teachers, and all school building

          8  occupants.

          9                 Third, is a question, and I am not

         10  proposing an answer, be cause I do not know the

         11  answer, but we have an important question that we

         12  urge the City Council to consider investigating. As

         13  you are well aware, New York City is planning to

         14  embark on a much- needed capital construction

         15  project for rebuilding New York City Schools.  We

         16  understand, anecdotally at this time, that the

         17  School Construction Authority is now, as we speak,

         18  issuing our fees for new school construction, based

         19  on a conventional school design.             I have

         20  had information provided to me by Murray Levy, a

         21  Green Architect in the City, who has looked at them

         22  on our behalf, thankfully, and has said that

         23  compared to the type of standard that we are talking

         24  about with LEED Silver, or future Green School

         25  Design standard compared to what the School
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          2  Construction Authority is currently issuing

          3  contracts for, there is a very wide gap.  We are

          4  talking about schools that are not going to be

          5  contemporary schools, or in the mainstream of what

          6  we are talking about here with LEED schools.  These

          7  schools have no indoor air quality standards.  They

          8  have no standards about the type of materials used

          9  in terms of emissions of VOC's or other hazardous

         10  substances, and we can go on and on through that of

         11  how the current standards are lacking.

         12                 These are the same standards that

         13  have produced schools with poor indoor air quality,

         14  poor lighting, poor acoustics, mold problems, and

         15  other problems that detract from health and

         16  learning.  It would be a shame if this bill that we

         17  are talking about 324 were successfully enacted into

         18  law, yet we find that the time that the vast

         19  majority of the next generation of school

         20  construction is already in the pipeline, and beyond

         21  the reach of this vitally important new standards.

         22                 We urge that the Council consider

         23  this possible outcome before final action.  And that

         24  the Council affirm and ensure that this next

         25  generation of school construction is Green, and
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          2  built in accordance with healthy and high

          3  performance building standards.

          4                 To enact these important new building

          5  standards for schools, yet have them not apply to

          6  next wave of school construction would make this a

          7  hollow victory for the current and future

          8  generations of New York City school children.

          9                 Finally, I just want to affirm we

         10  support 324- A.  We support it because it is good

         11  for the health of children, and it is good for

         12  providing an learning environment that will improve

         13  test scores, improve student attendance, improve

         14  teacher satisfaction, and the satisfaction of others

         15  who work in the building.  It is a way to make

         16  better schools and better education in New York

         17  State.              Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         19  very much.  Just identify yourself.

         20                 MR. KATS:  Chairperson Provenzano and

         21  members of the Committee, my name is Greg Kats.  I

         22  am with a company called Capital E.  I appreciate

         23  the opportunity to speak on behalf of bills 438 and

         24  324- A, both of which are fiscally prudent.  Each of

         25  you have received a handout, and it has got on it
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          2  some graphics, which speak deliberately to the

          3  specific point about both cost premium for Green

          4  Buildings and what the financial benefits are.     The

          5  three graphs in there, I will look at and talk about

          6  as we go through the testimony.  The specifics,

          7  there is one very large study that was undertaken

          8  for 40 state agencies that looked at this critical

          9  question.  Do you have copies?

         10                 This study was for 40 plus agencies.

         11  We looked at the specific question, what are costs

         12  of Green Buildings, and what are the financial

         13  benefits.  On page two of your handout, you will see

         14  a mapping of cost of Green Building by type of Green

         15  Building. The average is a 2 percent cost premium

         16  for 40 Green Buildings for which we are able to get

         17  rigorous data.  Two percent cost premium on average

         18  for Green Buildings, it is under 2 percent for

         19  Silver Buildings, a bit more than 2 percent for Gold

         20  Buildings.  That is on the order of four or five

         21  dollars a square foot.

         22                 So, you have a very clear idea of

         23  what the cost premiums in Green Buildings are.  It

         24  is important to say that Green Buildings even up

         25  through the Platinum level are not the most advanced
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          2  building.  There is many more advanced buildings

          3  being built.  For example zero- energy buildings.

          4  So, a Silver level rating is a prudent level.  There

          5  are other corporate entities and other cities, which

          6  are requiring a higher level than Silver.

          7                 It is important to note that as a big

          8  city, like New York City begins to build Green

          9  Buildings, the large economies of scale--

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  You guys can

         11  still see right?  Because I am being blinded by

         12  those lights up there.  And you know I hate to tell

         13  you this but all we need is a dimmer switch.  So,

         14  you know, we have all these big construction guys,

         15  builders, and we do not have a dimmer switch on our

         16  lights.

         17                 MR. KATS:  Perfect for a Green

         18  retrofit.  On the benefit side, there is a set of

         19  benefits.  Obviously, efficient or high performance

         20  Green Buildings use less energy.  The value of that

         21  energy over 20 years on a discounted basis is six

         22  dollars a square foot.  So on an energy basis alone,

         23  Green Buildings more than pay for themselves.  The

         24  operations and maintenance value from Green

         25  Buildings conservatively is about eight dollars a
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          2  square foot.  That is about a 5 percent reduction in

          3  operations and maintenance costs.

          4                 Between energy at six dollars a

          5  square foot, operations and maintenance benefits at

          6  eight dollars a square foot, you are already

          7  exceeding the initial cost premium of Green

          8  Buildings, which is about 2 percent.  It is less

          9  than that for Silver Buildings.

         10                 Moving on to the largest cost for any

         11  public entity or private entity as the cost of

         12  employees, both the direct and indirect costs, and

         13  we are going to look now at the issues of

         14  productivity and health.  There have been several

         15  thousand studies looking at the relationship between

         16  some aspect of high performance buildings, health,

         17  and productivity benefits.  Those studies show a

         18  positive correlation between 7 percent up to 10

         19  percent for individual features, such as improved

         20  ventilation, improved temperature, improved lighting

         21  control, and improved day lighting.               Based

         22  on actual performance in Green Buildings are very

         23  prudent and conservative estimates for increased

         24  productivity and health is 1 percent.  Because the

         25  cost of employees is so large that translates into
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          2  $35 a square foot.  The Department of Finance in

          3  California, among 40 other agencies signed off on

          4  this.  It was used by the Board of Education to

          5  require, excuse me, Green Buildings for higher level

          6  education in California.

          7                 If you would please turn to this page

          8  here, which is a summary chart.  We will just run

          9  through again the financial benefits.  The cost

         10  premium, as we have looked at, is two dollars a

         11  square foot, - -  is on average four dollars a

         12  square foot, 2 percent, it is actually less than

         13  that for Silver Buildings.  The energy savings is

         14  about six dollars a square foot.  Operations and

         15  maintenance is about eight dollars a square foot.

         16  Water and waste savings are a couple of dollars, in

         17  addition to that.  And then productivity and health

         18  costs, again on a very prudent and discounted basis,

         19  as a 30 to 50 dollars per square foot.  In other

         20  words, the cost effectiveness of Green Buildings at

         21  this level are very clear.  They have been

         22  demonstrated to be about a ratio of 10:1.

         23                 Now, I should add to that there are

         24  some very large additional benefits that are not

         25  included in here.  Every one of these points within
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          2  LEED is mapped against six types of insurance. We

          3  did this with Lawrence Berkeley National Lab, and

          4  about half the points result in insurance related

          5  benefits.  Those were not quantified here.

          6                 New York City is facing potentially

          7  2800- megawatt shortage of electricity coming into

          8  the City.  If you build Green Buildings, you have

          9  buildings that are much more energy efficient, you

         10  help address that problem.  The cost of water, and

         11  water treatment and waste, related to earlier, those

         12  also represent very large social benefits to the

         13  City that would accrue, if Green Building designs

         14  were put into place.

         15                 All of these additional benefits are

         16  not included in the initial comprehensive study,

         17  which again showed a 10:1 benefit cost ratio in

         18  favor of buildings.  I think it is important to

         19  note, also, as Mr. Durst indicated earlier, that

         20  adoption of a national standard in New York City, a

         21  standard that has been adopted in Chicago, and

         22  Houston, and Los Angeles, and San Francisco, and

         23  other major cities, allows builders here to use

         24  national firms which would bring down the cost of

         25  construction.  Creating a separate standard for New
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          2  York City means that you are imposing additional

          3  costs on construction that are an unnecessary

          4  burden, and will result in higher costs of

          5  construction.  Going with a national standard allows

          6  economies of scale and brings down cost of

          7  construction.

          8                 For these and other reasons, we

          9  strongly endorse these bills as fiscally prudent,

         10  and sound steps that are being taking by other

         11  cities across the country, and should be taken by

         12  New York City as well.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         14  That is why we did our bit to save energy by

         15  shutting the light.

         16                 MR. AMATRUDO:  Thank you.  My name is

         17  John Amatrudo. I am architect at Steven Winters

         18  Associates in Norwalk, Connecticut.  We are a

         19  building systems consulting firm that specializes in

         20  high performance and Green Building consulting.

         21  Steve Winter, himself, was actually the previous

         22  Chair of the U.S. Green Building Council at the

         23  national level.  We are a firm that has worked on

         24  probably over 50 LEED projects at this point, and

         25  have been involved to some degree of the actual
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          2  writing and revising of LEED program itself.

          3                 I am actually here today to talk to

          4  the Committee because for about the past two years I

          5  have been the principal project manager and author

          6  of a study for the U.S. General Services

          7  Administration, that specifically addressed the

          8  issue of LEED construction costs and soft costs for

          9  LEED projects.

         10                 As was mentioned by one of your

         11  previous panel members, the U.S. General Services

         12  Administration currently has a policy that requires

         13  all of their new construction and major renovation

         14  projects to achieve, at minimum, a LEED certified

         15  rating, and ideally Silver ratings or higher.  The

         16  GSA made these commitments based on their previous

         17  research into costs and benefits of Green Buildings.

         18    What they had asked our firm to for them

         19  specifically, was to look at the latest LEED

         20  criteria, and to specifically and very

         21  systematically evaluate for them what we felt the

         22  range of first costs, construction costs, impact

         23  would be on those projects.

         24                 GSA, by the way, used two specific

         25  costing models that represented two of their very
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          2  difficult building projects for the basis of this

          3  study.  One was a mid- rise courthouse building, new

          4  construction, and about 300,000 square feet.

          5                 The second project was actually an

          6  office building renovation, major renovation

          7  project, also about 300,000 square feet in size.

          8                 I think it is important to emphasize

          9  for this Committee that GSA assumes that their

         10  projects are predominately urban projects and urban

         11  sites that they do span this range of some new

         12  construction to significant renovation and

         13  modifications.  So, to some degree there are certain

         14  levels of parallel between how they are approaching,

         15  or how they are using LEED as a system verses how

         16  the City would potentially use LEED.

         17                 They did not see the urban structure

         18  or the urban nature of their projects as being an

         19  impediment to being able to achieve the ratings.

         20                 The results of the LEED study, which

         21  I will talk about just in general, I think in many

         22  ways support what you just heard from Greg Kats.  At

         23  the certified and Silver levels of attainment, what

         24  they basically discovered was that, or what the

         25  results of the study identified, were that for the
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          2  court house scenario, the costs actually ranged from

          3  a slight reduction in cost, at the most of about

          4  seventy- five cents a square foot, to the maximum

          5  cost of, at the certified level, of about two

          6  dollars a square foot.  At the Silver rating level,

          7  when they went at the court house, because of some

          8  of the particularities of that particular building

          9  type, they found that Silver costs could get as high

         10  as about $9.50 a square foot.  But taking out a few

         11  of the extremities that were related to that

         12  building type, they found that those costs would be

         13  more in the four to five dollars per square foot

         14  range, had we talking about an office building

         15  rather than a court house.

         16                 In the renovation scenarios,

         17  similarly, we found that the office building

         18  renovation at a certified level ranged from about

         19  $1.75 a square foot to about $2.75 a square foot.

         20  At the Silver level it ranged from about $3.95 a

         21  square foot to about $5.50 a square foot.

         22                 Overall, their prospective on these

         23  costs is that achieving certified and Silver ratings

         24  is generally going to fall within that two dollar to

         25  five dollar per square foot range.  Which as Greg
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          2  mentioned to you previously, is typically running

          3  somewhere around 2 percent, 2.5 percent, depending

          4  on the baseline cost of the building type that you

          5  are actually talking about.  Which is why we

          6  actually prefer in some respects to talk about costs

          7  on a per square foot basis, as opposed to just a

          8  percentage basis.

          9                 I should add that GSA study, in many

         10  respects, is conservative, and was identified as

         11  being so.  There is a certain level of sacrificing

         12  of a creativity in the process that we used. For

         13  instance, in the way we did the analysis, we did not

         14  allow between our baseline and our LEED buildings

         15  for any major design changes to occur.  It basically

         16  involved looking at a GSA baseline building and

         17  deciding what type of system changes or material

         18  changes, or sort of finish changes we could make to

         19  that project to achieve LEED credits.  We did not

         20  specifically allow for the idea of saying, we could

         21  probably redesign this baseline building in a way to

         22  be more efficient and reduce costs even further.

         23  Even with that level of conservative estimating, we

         24  still see this two to five dollars per square foot

         25  cost for construction, for first costs.
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          2                 One of the results of doing this

          3  study that is very significant to GSA is that they

          4  realize because we looked at a range costs, and we,

          5  as I mentioned, we specifically looked at a range at

          6  each rating level to try to define at both a low end

          7  and a high end, they decided that it would be very

          8  prudent to develop an applications guide for their

          9  program managers and contractors to help them

         10  understand the best ways of managing costs related

         11  to Green Buildings.  That is something, in fact,

         12  that we are actively involved with right now, and we

         13  will probably have posted, along with the cost

         14  study, which will be publicly available by the

         15  middle of October.

         16                 The key findings, I think, of the

         17  idea of looking at costs is that by understanding

         18  where some of the costs fall within the LEED system,

         19  it actually allows design teams to understand the

         20  basis for actually managing those costs.  And what

         21  we found, are that are basically three issues that

         22  can be used to actively reduce any first costs

         23  associated with Green Buildings, and particularly

         24  with LEED Buildings.

         25                 The first of those is really what I
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          2  am going to just generalize by saying be optimistic.

          3    And I think you heard some of the previous people

          4  discuss the fact that we are always starting on any

          5  project depending on what the program is, depending

          6  what the site is, depending on what the local codes

          7  are, local laws are, or design standards are, there

          8  is going to be a certain level of overlap between

          9  those existing standards and some of the actual LEED

         10  criteria.  So, in many cases there are a number of

         11  aspects of LEED that project teams will find that

         12  can be achieved at essentially no cost, by virtue of

         13  that, correspondence between their existing programs

         14  and LEED.

         15                 The second thing that they have found

         16  is that by understanding and educating the design

         17  teams about this performance criteria, most of the

         18  LEED credits, if you are familiar with them, are

         19  performance based.  They do not tell you

         20  specifically how to reach the level of performance.

         21  The intent of that is to allow flexibility.  And,

         22  what we have essentially found is that since there

         23  are many ways to earn different credits, there are

         24  some ways that are very cost effective, and very

         25  simple to do, and in other respects they can be very

                                                            102

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  expensive to do, depending on which approach you

          3  use.  The more educated design teams become in these

          4  standards, the lower those costs can be for

          5  attaining those credits.

          6                 And finally, something that has

          7  probably been mentioned by a number of the other

          8  people who spoke here today, the performance

          9  criteria essentially they engage design teams to

         10  achieve a more integrated design process.  What we

         11  find is that when you get better communication among

         12  the design teams, when they have a set of goals in

         13  front of them that they understand they are required

         14  to achieve as part of a LEED process, it not only

         15  allows teams to be more creative and to use their

         16  ingenuity to find cost effective ways to achieve

         17  these performance goals, but it also in some

         18  respects, allows them to trim away some of the fat,

         19  if you will, that typically goes into most design

         20  projects based on the fact that teams are basing

         21  their assumptions on typical conventions rather than

         22  really focusing on what the opportunities are.

         23                 We believe that in fact the idea of

         24  the Council putting a program like LEED into place

         25  is very valuable.  In and of the fact that it
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          2  actually does create a set of performance standards

          3  for design teams to use as a basis of their design.

          4  We should not underestimate the fact that these

          5  types of performance criteria are not typically

          6  addressed in most design projects.  Or if they are,

          7  they are addressed only in as much as the existing

          8  building codes require you to take sort of minimum

          9  due diligence, in addressing issues like water

         10  savings, or energy savings, or indoor air quality

         11  related issues.

         12                 So, in summary, we would just like to

         13  say that we do support these bills.  We think they

         14  add much value to the City's projects.  And we do

         15  believe that the costs based on our work and our

         16  studies are controllable.  And as related to what

         17  Greg's studies and others have shown about benefits,

         18  the costs are far unweighed by the benefits that are

         19  available.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         22  Can we move the mic over to the end?  I do not know

         23  why we did not have more mics there.

         24                 MR. REISS:  Good afternoon, my name

         25  is Jeremy Reiss and I am Co-Project Director of

                                                            104

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Urban Agenda, a research and policy initiative of

          3  the New York City Central Labor Council and the

          4  Queens College Labor Resource Center.  Urban Agenda

          5  is spearheading a project called New York Apollo,

          6  which is a growing coalition of unions, business

          7  leaders, environmental justice advocates, and

          8  educators convened to optimize energy usage in a way

          9  that allows us to create jobs, revitalize under-

         10  served communities, and improve our internal and

         11  external environments.

         12                 Urban Agenda supports Intro. 324- A

         13  and Intro. 438 as well as the larger issue of

         14  creating and retrofitting high performance buildings

         15  and infrastructure for a number of reasons.

         16                 As some of the developers said

         17  before, helping high performance buildings are the

         18  wave of the future.  Class A office space in the

         19  near term will, by definition, require the

         20  integration of healthy and high performance

         21  technologies.  In order for our City to maintain its

         22  competitive edge and to truly be a world class city,

         23  the infrastructure for high performance building

         24  design, construction, and maintenance must be

         25  developed and supported.  The public sector has a
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          2  key role, both through public policy and example, in

          3  making this a reality.

          4                 For instance, Intro. 324- A in

          5  mandating new municipal construction be built

          6  according to energy efficiency standards, will

          7  demonstrate the great economic, health, and

          8  environmental benefits of high performance

          9  buildings.  Also, by taking the lead, Intro. 324- A

         10  will prime the high performance building market by

         11  increasing demand, and streamlining processes that

         12  will help fuel the market.  We believe Intro. 324- A

         13  will help fuel the investment, construction,

         14  production markets for high performance buildings

         15  and products.

         16                 Likewise, 438, through expedited

         17  permitting process will encourage private developers

         18  to build according to energy efficient standards,

         19  which as you have heard is not really more

         20  expensive.

         21                 Secondly, health and high performance

         22  buildings are not a project, from a labor

         23  standpoint.  They are a 100 years of work for us.

         24  We look at our built environment with an amazing

         25  potential to create good jobs for workers to build
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          2  and retrofit high performance buildings for the next

          3  century.  In addition, technologies that can help

          4  power high performance buildings have been proven to

          5  generate jobs.  Through production and installation,

          6  wind power creates 2.77 jobs for every megawatt

          7  produced, solar photovoltaic installation creates

          8  7.26 jobs per megawatt, solar thermal creates 5.93,

          9  and et cetera.  These job creation figures are

         10  especially important now that New York last week

         11  passed a 24 percent renewable portfolio standard,

         12  which will increase market certainty for renewables

         13  and investments for local production capacity, and

         14  thus we hope will spur job creation and cut our

         15  City's unemployment rate.

         16                 Also, it is absolutely critical that

         17  New York City maintains a thriving manufacturing

         18  sector, a source of good, family sustaining jobs.  A

         19  strong manufacturing sector is a leading indicator

         20  of a strong economy.  High performance buildings

         21  present the opportunity to develop a Green

         22  industrial sector in New York to support the

         23  products, solar panels, window fixtures, et cetera,

         24  that support the high performance building market.

         25                 We are constantly disappointed to
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          2  hear from engineers, developers, architects, and

          3  others that when they are looking to build high

          4  performance buildings, they have to look to Canada,

          5  the West Coast, and other parts of the world to find

          6  the products they need to build here in New York.

          7  There is no reason that these products cannot be

          8  produced here.  We have the talent and capacity to

          9  become a global manufacturing center for the high

         10  performance building market.  We must capitalize on

         11  our proximity, and help manufacturers in decline

         12  transition to the new.  The economic vitality of our

         13  City and the lives of our workers depend on it.

         14                 Critical to the success and expansion

         15  the high performance building market is high quality

         16  worker training, designed in conjunction with unions

         17  and employers in order to best meet industries needs

         18  and workers realities.  Our City depends on a highly

         19  skilled labor force, and in the future the Council

         20  must seek to link this economic development strategy

         21  to a comprehensive work force development approach

         22  that includes pilot training programs for

         23  unemployed, dislocated, and incumbent workers

         24  throughout the City.

         25                 Furthermore, healthy and high
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          2  performance buildings have the potential to

          3  revolutionize the way the City is powered. As you

          4  know, our waterfronts and other neighborhoods are

          5  being rezoned, and luxury residential construction

          6  is on the rise. Residents increasingly demand air

          7  conditioners, dishwashers, and other amenities, yet

          8  do not want power plants sitting in their backyards.

          9    An increasing demand for power cannot continue to

         10  be simply addressed by citing power plants in the

         11  City's poorest neighborhoods.  It is absolutely

         12  inequitable and forces us to rethink the question of

         13  how our City is powered.                           According

         14  to the New York City Energy Policy Task Force, our

         15  city will need 3,780 additional maggots of capacity

         16  by 2008, which roughly translates into five new

         17  power plants.  High performance buildings will help

         18  to reduce this need, and unlike our current approach

         19  to energy, will promote neighborhood health.  The

         20  Freedom Tower will be the City's first building

         21  powered entirely by alternative sources, including

         22  wind turbines in the building's infrastructure and

         23  technologies enabling us to utilize the power

         24  generated by underwater currents.  This is a

         25  development that should serve as a model for how we
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          2  plan our built environment.

          3                 High performance buildings are an

          4  important part of a larger strategy for a strong

          5  economy and a healthy city.  As others here have

          6  testified, healthy and high performance buildings

          7  will improve student performance, worker

          8  productivity, and the overall health of our City.

          9  Energy efficiency and distributed technologies also

         10  promote load management and system stability, which

         11  is especially important in our City, which relies

         12  heavily on networks, credit card machines, internet,

         13  refrigeration, communications, electric cash

         14  registers, electronic security systems, and neon

         15  lights that operate day and night.

         16                 Overall, we look forward to working

         17  with the Council on these pieces of legislation, and

         18  other future legislation and demonstration programs

         19  that support high performance buildings, and

         20  infrastructure, and other initiatives that

         21  strengthen our economy and the City's overall

         22  health.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         24  very much.  Do we have any question from the two

         25  faithful Committee members?  Council Member Brewer.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

          3  very much.  One question I have is that because you

          4  some national expertise on schools in particular,

          5  with schools that are built around the country are

          6  they adhering to the standards that you listed?

          7                 MR. BOESE:  California has developed

          8  their own set of school guidelines called CHIP,

          9  California Collaborate for High Performance Schools,

         10  CHIPS, that is by and large what is being used by

         11  the schools in Los Angeles, San Francisco, and other

         12  jurisdictions.  It is, I think that there is

         13  certainly some similarities with LEED, and there are

         14  some differences as well.

         15                 Massachusetts is developing

         16  guidelines, which is also their own state

         17  guidelines, borrowing from both LEED and CHIPS, I

         18  think it is fair to say.

         19                 New Jersey is using the LEED system

         20  for their school development.  Other school

         21  districts around the country, in North Carolina and

         22  many other places are looking for LEED, because that

         23  is the national standard.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  This is for

         25  new construction as well as renovation, or primarily
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          2  new construction?

          3                 MR. BOESE:  Primarily new

          4  construction, but also major renovation, however

          5  that is defined in the state.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Well I know

          7  in my district, on the West Side of Manhattan,

          8  Brandeis High School, it has $15 million

          9  reconstruction.  It is an older school with a lot of

         10  issues, and that would be an example of not a new

         11  school, but a lot of renovation at certainly a big

         12  price tag.

         13                 MR. BOESE:  Right

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So, that

         15  would be something that other states, perhaps, could

         16  be something that would follow some of your

         17  guidelines that you outlined.

         18                 MR. BOESE:  That is right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  The other

         20  question I have, it is my ignorance, but the New

         21  York State, what is it called NYSERDA, what does it

         22  stand for, New York State Energy Research

         23  Development whatever.

         24                 MR. BOESE:  I found it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you, I

                                                            112

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  just know the acronym.  Do other states have a

          3  similar organization, and is this an organization

          4  that could help us in some way in New York?  The

          5  reason I ask is, obviously, we have met with them,

          6  again in my district we are renovating an old parks

          7  bathhouse, and it costs a lot of money to renovate,

          8  perhaps 20 million.  One of the questions is how can

          9  NYSERDA help us in that, or how could we in fact get

         10  some funding if in fact it is a Green recreation

         11  facility, which certainly one would hope in that it

         12  is a park facility that it would follow some of

         13  those guidelines.  So I did not just know if in

         14  other states a similar organization exists, and if

         15  it does, how does it help those states?  And in our

         16  state is it helpful?  I do not know who can answer

         17  that.

         18                 MR. FRANK:  NYSERDA has been selected

         19  by the public service.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  State your

         21  name again.

         22                 MR. FRANK:  I am sorry, Scott Frank

         23  from the U.S. Green Building Council New York

         24  Chapter.  One of the functions of NYSERDA is to

         25  administer revenue from the systems benefits charge.
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          2  It was a surcharge that all electrical energy

          3  ratepayers of New York State pay.  The primary goal

          4  of that money is to provide incentive to implement

          5  energy conserving technologies.  As long as this, to

          6  answer your question, if the school is paying kind

          7  of the same electricity, then it can qualify for

          8  these programs under the systems benefits charge.

          9  If it is receiving power through NYPA, then strictly

         10  speaking they cannot qualify.

         11                 But having said that, there are a

         12  number of programs, too many to discuss here, and a

         13  representative of NYSERDA is probably the right

         14  avenue to identify those that are appropriate.  They

         15  certainly are focused on energy conservation as well

         16  as Green Building issues, in general.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Have you

         18  found that they have participated, have

         19  municipalities asked them for assistance, is there a

         20  dialogue that develops?  I have found that that is

         21  not true, in other words, I had to push some

         22  agencies to say have you contacted NYSERDA, are

         23  there ways we can work together?  It does not seem

         24  to be an automatic.  But maybe in your experience it

         25  is.
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          2                 MR. FRANK:  I guess I specifically

          3  cannot speak to the experience of individual

          4  agencies.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

          6                 MR. AMATRUDO:  Hello, this is John

          7  Amatrudo from Steven Winters Associates again.  We

          8  are actually one of the technical consultants for

          9  NYSERDA, and we have done a lot of work through the

         10  Department of Design and Construction channeling

         11  NYSERDA funds, both from consulting services and

         12  hard costs incentives to DDC projects.  I believe we

         13  have also been involved at least with a couple of

         14  school construction authority projects, as well.

         15  You are correct in saying that it is not automatic.

         16  But I will say that there are agencies, like DDC,

         17  who are well aware of what NYSERDA has to offer, and

         18  do try to get them involved in many of their

         19  projects.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         21  Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         23  Member Comrie, any questions?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I will ask

         25  the same question about retrofitting and the
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          2  ability, do you think of the City to retrofit their

          3  existing buildings in LEED Green Building Standards,

          4  do you think it is feasible, number one, and any

          5  panel member can answer that question?

          6                 MR. KATS:  The answer is yes.  The

          7  LEED for existing buildings came out as a pilot

          8  about six months ago.  There is over 100 buildings

          9  now in that, it is going into a more formal release,

         10  but functionally it is out on the market.  LEED new

         11  construction, which addresses new constructions is,

         12  obviously, a very small slice of the market.  Many

         13  times bigger existing buildings, this is designed to

         14  specifically to map that.  It involves pilots that

         15  are here in New York City.  It is very cost

         16  effective, while of the same kind of benefit cost

         17  ratio that we have seen for new construction, which

         18  again is at least 10:1.  So, it is a program that is

         19  good to go and has already been proven, and we

         20  expect it to be very successful.  I think there is

         21  about 20 million square feet already committed to

         22  it, and that is growing very rapidly.  So yes in

         23  answer to your question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So do you

         25  think the benefits, and you flipped to new
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          2  construction when you talked about cost benefits,

          3  what about the benefits for older buildings, does it

          4  make sense or energy-wise or savings-wise to spend

          5  all that money to retrofit?

          6                 MR. KATS:  Yes, it does.  You have

          7  less options with an existing building.  You cannot

          8  change the site of the orientation of the building,

          9  but these are generally very comprehensive rehabs so

         10  you can get an address, lighting issues, HVAC

         11  issues, the big energy-, and water-using systems,

         12  you can cool the building, if you put in different

         13  windows.  So, the opportunities to put technologies

         14  into these buildings to make them use a lot less

         15  resources, make them more comfortable, improve the

         16  quality of comfort within the building, reduce

         17  operations and maintenance costs.  All those

         18  available benefits which exist for new buildings

         19  also exist for these kind of buildings.  We expect

         20  it to be extremely cost effective, and the very

         21  rapid rate of adoption speaks to that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Will the LEED

         23  standards be consistent, and will the City have an

         24  opportunity to have priority issues over the

         25  standards, if they adopt the general standards?
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          2                 MR. KATS:  By joining formally with

          3  LEED, New York would have a larger voice and

          4  participate in shaping LEED.  The prior set of

          5  panelists are all members of U.S. Green Building

          6  Council along with hundreds of New York City based

          7  organizations or organizations with a presence in

          8  New York.  See, New York has already had a very

          9  active role in shaping U.S. GBC.  The adoption of

         10  LEED again in Chicago, in Houston, in Los Angeles,

         11  and other big cities attests to its fit with big

         12  cities.  This is not public knowledge yet, but

         13  Chicago is putting together legislation for a much

         14  more aggressive, accelerated, permitting program,

         15  than is being contemplated here.  And important

         16  point to make on that, I think, is that if you go

         17  through the LEED process, you are going through

         18  commissioning, you going through documentation, you

         19  are going through engineer sign off.   In other

         20  words, the concern that someone doing permitting

         21  has, is largely addressed through LEED because you

         22  are going for additional certification and sign off

         23  process.  It helps explain why it makes sense to

         24  provide accelerated permitting to these kinds of

         25  buildings, at no cost to the city, by the way.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  And

          3  just a final question on use of materials.  I kind

          4  of agree with the New York and Suburban Lumber

          5  Association that there is only finance set of

          6  materials that they can get access to that would be

          7  certifiable, then the benefit is really negligible,

          8  but the material you use to get a rating.  How does

          9  that play, if you can not get the materials to do

         10  the work, but you want to be able to do the work,

         11  are other materials acceptable to get the same

         12  result?

         13                 MR. FRANK:  Part of the previous

         14  response again, the requirement of a certified wood

         15  under LEED is one of 69 possible points, number one.

         16    Number two by definition LEED is attempting market

         17  transformation.  The goal is through adoption of

         18  LEED the market starts to evolve, and the notion

         19  being that related to certified wood in particular,

         20  that the availability of products will continue to

         21  increase.  It has increased significantly even in

         22  the few years that LEED has been a prominent tool

         23  that has been implemented.

         24                 So, that is of no surprise, and it

         25  certainly, in our view is not a limitation to stand
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          2  in the way of implementing LEED on a wide scale in

          3  New York City.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So, the use

          5  of materials is only one point.

          6                 MR. FRANK:  Well that is one.  There

          7  are several materials related points.  The points

          8  governing wood are one point of a handful of points

          9  relating to materials, and of 69 points in total.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So their

         11  standards for concrete and all the building

         12  materials as well.

         13                 MR. FRANK:  Correct

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you.

         15  Thank you Madam Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         17  Thank you gentlemen.  We have one more panel,

         18  Patrick Rita, Stephen Rosario, Jen Roth, Shannon

         19  Stone, Cameron Lory.  Well, well, well, three women,

         20  as I was just about to comment that out of 17 people

         21  testifying we did not have any females, so you saved

         22  the day ladies.  Do you want to start, since you are

         23  on the end?

         24                 MS. ROTH:  Good afternoon, thank you

         25  for the opportunity to testify today.  My name is
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          2  Jen Roth, and I am the Director of Research and

          3  Policy at the New York Industrial Retention Network,

          4  otherwise know as NYIRN.  NYIRN is a city- wide

          5  economic development organization dedicated to a

          6  diverse economy that provides employment

          7  opportunities for all New Yorkers by strengthening

          8  New York City's manufacturing sector based on

          9  principles of economic, and environmental justice,

         10  and sustainability.

         11                 Intros. 342- A and 438 are tremendous

         12  steps forward in helping the City reach its true

         13  potential in being a leader in sustainable

         14  development.  Encouraging high performance buildings

         15  will not only elevate the quality of life for the

         16  constructors and tenants of those buildings, but the

         17  City as a whole.  It will also help spur increased

         18  demand for high performance products.  One of the

         19  criteria for judging whether a building meets

         20  certain types of high performance standards is the

         21  use of locally produced goods, which can reduce

         22  energy and pollution caused by the transportation of

         23  products.  There is no reason why New York City

         24  manufacturers can not produce those high performance

         25  products right here.
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          2                 There are approximately 2,000

          3  companies in New York City that manufacture products

          4  used in the construction or furnishing of office

          5  buildings.  While many of these companies may not

          6  currently meet Green standards, demonstrated demand

          7  will certainly prime the pump, and convince them

          8  that tweaking their products will be worthwhile.

          9                 After 9/11, NYIRN partnered with the

         10  Industrial and Technical Assistance Corporation, and

         11  the Manufacturers Association of New York to create

         12  an online business- to- business directory called,

         13  Made In NYC, to help companies increase their sales,

         14  specifically from other manufacturers and local

         15  businesses.  More than 550 companies have registered

         16  for the program.  That website sets the foundation

         17  for linking the New York manufacturers to the

         18  benefits of sustainable development.  It is

         19  conceivable that in a few years time, Made in NYC,

         20  will be synonymous with Made Sustainably.

         21                 These pieces of legislation hold

         22  great potential for maintaining and growing

         23  manufacturing jobs in New York City, and NYIRN looks

         24  forward to working with the City Council to do so. Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          3                 MR. ROSARIO:  Thank you.  Council

          4  Member Provenzano and Members of the Committee on

          5  Housing and Buildings, I apologize I did not have

          6  time to complete my comments for distribution, but I

          7  will submit them, probably by tomorrow afternoon

          8  with the Committee's permission.  My name is Stephen

          9  Rosario and I am director of the Northeast Regional

         10  Office of the American Plastics Council.

         11                 We are a national trade association

         12  that works to make plastics a preferred material by

         13  demonstrating that they are a responsible choice in

         14  a more environmentally conscious world.  I am here

         15  to raise a number of issues.  With the current

         16  legislation we believe it will have a negative

         17  impact on building materials, especially plastic

         18  materials and ultimately lead to deselection of

         19  products.  I am glad to be sitting with a colleague

         20  who supports manufacturing, because we are truly an

         21  American manufacturing industry that was invented

         22  right here in America.

         23                 Let me begin by stating that APC has

         24  been on the public record in support of standards

         25  that seek to encourage resource conservation and the
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          2  use of energy efficient buildings in order to

          3  achieve high energy efficiency and Green Building

          4  standards.  We support the concept of LEED and of

          5  striving to meet such standards in buildings.  We

          6  strongly believe it is the many benefits provided by

          7  plastic products in use today that make buildings

          8  more energy efficient, help lower the cost of

          9  building construction, and contribute to the overall

         10  performance of modern day residential and commercial

         11  buildings.

         12                 We have been working for the past

         13  several years on this issue, not only in New York,

         14  but in other jurisdictions, most recently the state

         15  of Maine.  We are also currently involved in New

         16  York City in their effort in adopting a new Building

         17  Code.  The areas of concern for us are, first the

         18  legislation's soul reliance on LEED developed by

         19  USGBC.  Also the fact that this has not been beaded

         20  through a consensus process, similar to the City's

         21  efforts in adopting a new Building Code.

         22                 By requiring LEED it would place into

         23  statute, a feed based rating system with some

         24  significant shortcomings.  Many of these

         25  considerations, in terms of Green Buildings, can
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          2  also be seen in the adoption of the model Building

          3  Code that the City is currently going through.

          4  However, USGBC is not an accredited, nationally

          5  recognized standard writing organization with a

          6  transparent process open to all stakeholders.  Its

          7  design criteria fails to incorporate life cycle

          8  impacts and costs of products. LEED is an incomplete

          9  program that is still evolving.  You heard some of

         10  that today.

         11                 I will be providing you some

         12  information of a study by the University of Michigan

         13  that was sponsored by the National Institute of

         14  Standards and Technology.  If I could just read you

         15  one quote from one of their conclusions.  "Why LEED

         16  appears to be accomplishing the goal of an

         17  ecolabeling program, as a marketing and policy tool

         18  it is not as successful at being a comprehensive

         19  methodology for assessment of environmental impacts.

         20    This is especially troubling from a consumer

         21  prospective, as for LEED rating is intended to

         22  become the currency of environmental value. Upon

         23  which future users, and owners, and public agencies

         24  rely." This report was put together by the Center

         25  For Sustainable Systems at U Michigan and Arbor.
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          2                 Sustainable and energy efficient

          3  building is a complex undertaking.  The issue that

          4  other organizations have been involved in creating

          5  standards, like the American National Standards

          6  Institute (ANSI), and the International Standards

          7  Organization (ISO), the American Society for Testing

          8  and Materials (ASTM), and the International Code

          9  Council (ICC).  NIST, which asked for the study by U

         10  Michigan, developed a program, which very few people

         11  know about, and unfortunately, there is no

         12  constituency behind it similar to USGBC, and that is

         13  called BEES.

         14                 There are so many acronyms in this

         15  whole process that we have had to learn.  BEES

         16  stands for Building for Environment and Economic

         17  Sustainability.  The reason why BEES is a good

         18  program, and I am at a loss to explain if you ask

         19  the question why I could not answer the question.

         20  But what BEES does is it looks at the two important

         21  issues that are being discussed.  One is

         22  environmental impact and the other is cost.

         23                 You are going to be hearing this

         24  debate back and forth.  What BEES does is allows you

         25  to plug in a lot of information, and it tells you
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          2  what you are going to give up, if your goal is to

          3  have an economically cost benefit building.  It will

          4  also tell you what you give up in terms of cost, if

          5  you want an environmentally friendly building.    So

          6  BEES is a tool out there that, unfortunately, not

          7  very many people are talking about.               Further

          8  , you heard quite a bit about the costs involved in

          9  LEED.  Again, there was a report that was put out by

         10  the North Bridge Environmental Management Consulting

         11  Group, located in Cambridge, Massachusetts.  Their

         12  conclusions were that LEED adds between 4 to 11

         13  percent to construction cost, and estimates for

         14  other projects can be much higher.

         15                 The LEED's process imposes an

         16  administrative tax on the design and construction

         17  team.  The soft cost, which we do not hear very much

         18  about, include incremental cost for design, the

         19  documented, compliance, administrative fees,

         20  verifying compliance through the commissioning

         21  process.  I am glad that finally someone this

         22  morning mentioned the commissioning process.  There

         23  is a cost to all of that.  Once you get the

         24  designation, you have to work to keep it.

         25                 The analogy I will use is, I have a
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          2  car that is four- years- old, has 85,000 miles on

          3  it.  That car has cost me over a period of time to

          4  keep it running, exactly the same thing with a

          5  building, exactly the same thing, if you are going

          6  to maintain a Silver, Gold, or Platinum rating.

          7                 The last item that I would like to

          8  raise is that again, we believe that this should be

          9  part of the City's effort in adopting the new City

         10  code.  I have raised this issue in other

         11  jurisdictions and I will raise it here, that once

         12  again, this is a situation where you got legislation

         13  separate and apart from a process dealing with the

         14  code's development.  In one of the meetings about a

         15  year ago or so, I had asked a representative to one

         16  of the large real estate developers here in New

         17  York, and I asked him, without Green Buildings and

         18  LEED, if the City only adopted the building code,

         19  where would that get us in terms of Green Buildings.

         20    He said it gets you about 85 percent of where we

         21  want to be on Green Buildings.  Again, you are

         22  talking about an International Energy Conservation

         23  Code, ASHRI 9.0- 99, there are all these standards

         24  that all look to address the issue of energy

         25  efficiency, Green Buildings, et cetera.
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          2                 The one last item that I will raise,

          3  and I will complete it quickly, is that in terms of

          4  cost we have heard a lot about the 2 percent.  I

          5  believe that that is probably coming from a study

          6  that was done by the California Sustainable Building

          7  Task Force.  There is a report that was put out by

          8  Green Spirit Environmental Consulting, which is a

          9  firm in Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, that

         10  pretty much, analyzes that report and shows that

         11  there are some major deficiencies in the assumptions

         12  and in the conclusions by the California report

         13  talking about that 2 percent.  Again, they also

         14  mentioned the North Bridge Report and the increase

         15  costs.  Again, if I may just quote from that,

         16   "Because of the California report uses a limited

         17  data set in California, and has building

         18  requirements across the U.S. Vary widely, it's

         19  conclusions regarding costs cannot be applied

         20  nationwide."  As Peter Youse, Senior research

         21  associate, Building Science Corporation indicates,

         22  complicating the concept of Green Buildings, is that

         23  fact that it is by nature a matter of both context

         24  and degree.  The context of an urban area like

         25  Miami, can lead to resource efficient, home design,
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          2  construction and operation.  Very different from the

          3  context of rural Idaho.  Further, because of the

          4  construction and operation of all structures,

          5  necessarily have a significant environmental impact.

          6    There is a spectrum of resource efficiency, rather

          7  than a discreet or absolute character of Green

          8  Building.  These two points are important to keep in

          9  mind when investigating or comparing the various

         10  programs.

         11                 Again, I think the City Council is to

         12  be commended for their efforts here.  We hope that

         13  you would also include in your thinking before you

         14  make a final determination on these bills, some of

         15  the points, issues, studies, and information that we

         16  will be providing you.  Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         18                 MS. LORY:  Hello, my name is Cameron

         19  Lory, I am with Inform, we are a 29- year- old

         20  research and outreach group that focuses our

         21  energies on assisting government agencies, private

         22  organizations, and institutions to look at their

         23  practices and purchasing, to see ways that they can

         24  reduce waste, improve human health within their

         25  communities and beyond.
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          2                 This afternoon I would like to speak

          3  to the public health aspects of the LEED bill.  We

          4  are very much in favor of Intro. No. 324, for two

          5  major reasons.

          6                 It is taking New York in the right

          7  direction, by potentially limiting the use of

          8  products containing volatile organic chemicals to

          9  the greatest extent possible, which are significant

         10  contributors to respiratory problems, including

         11  asthmagens.  The asthma rates have skyrocketed in

         12  the last decade, particularly in children in urban

         13  areas.  All the causes of this phenomenon have yet

         14  to be explained.  However, air pollution, both

         15  indoor and exterior, have been clearly implicated.

         16                 It has further taking New York City

         17  in the right direction by requiring that all City-

         18  financed buildings significantly reduce their demand

         19  for energy, which would lead to cleaner air for all

         20  New Yorkers by reducing the use of fossil fuels

         21  within the City.  New York power is generated

         22  locally, meaning that the fuels used to heat, cool,

         23  and light buildings are burned locally, and that is

         24  emissions from these energy resources are also

         25  released locally.
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          2                 Inform would also like to point out a

          3  couple of areas where the law could be, where the

          4  proposal could be even stronger, where Intro. 324

          5  could be even more powerful.  By adding

          6  supplementary language that persistent bio-

          7  accumulative, that where products, excuse me,

          8  containing persistent bio- accumulative toxins, like

          9  mercury and lead, in equipment to be replaced with

         10  products and equipment that are either free of

         11  persistent bio- accumulative toxins or contain the

         12  least amount of these toxins possible, providing

         13  that these are options are performance equivalent,

         14  cost competitive, and readily available.  Persistent

         15  bio- accumulative toxins are a class of toxins that

         16  can never be safely used or disposed of.  Because

         17  PBT's are persistent in the environment and bio-

         18  accumulate in living creatures, they are very likely

         19  to pose a threat to the health of humans or

         20  ecosystems.  This is true whether they are generated

         21  as waste in the process of manufacturing products,

         22  as the pollutants and the use of products, or as

         23  containments in the disposal of products at the end

         24  of their lifetime.

         25                 One of the building products that
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          2  Inform researched that posses a direct threat to

          3  humans while the product is in use is Vinyl.  In New

          4  York City's public schools, vinyl tile is used as a

          5  floor finish in almost every classroom and corridor.

          6    Vinyl releases toxins and other, releases

          7  chemicals as it degrades. Vinyl will degrade in any

          8  moist condition, like a moist under- slab. In the

          9  case of unintentional fire damage to vinyl, it

         10  releases toxic fumes that can cause people to lose

         11  consciousness.  Vinyl has a flame spread rating,

         12  thus it releases fumes before the flames are even

         13  visible.

         14                 The LEED rating system also does not

         15  address mercury content of lighting or other

         16  building systems.  Mercury is not the only

         17  persistent bio- accumulative toxin, Mercury is not

         18  only a persistent bio- accumulative toxin, it has

         19  built up to dangerous level in the environment.  It

         20  is a severe neuro- toxin that has entered the food

         21  chain.

         22                 The U.S. EPA just recently released

         23  new figures on environmental mercury contamination,

         24  New York is one of 48 states with fish consumption

         25  advisories due to mercury.  In fact, 100 percent of
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          2  our lake acres and river miles are covered by fish

          3  consumption advisories.  Mercury is contained in

          4  many building systems including switches, HVAC

          5  systems, and air conditioning. Mercury free versions

          6  of most of these products are available.

          7                 It is also common in florescent

          8  lights by which it often, it easily enters the

          9  environment when these lamps are disposed of or

         10  mishandled.

         11                 Inform would also like to make the

         12  point that Intro. No. 324 should be applied to

         13  residential construction.  The City is involved in

         14  financing and operating thousands of residential

         15  buildings, whose occupants should benefit from

         16  improved interior air quality.  In its current form,

         17  Intro. No. 324 exempts residential construction from

         18  its LEED certification.  Most people spend more of

         19  their indoor time in their homes than they do

         20  anywhere else.  By exempting residential

         21  construction from LEED certification, the City is

         22  missing, perhaps, its best opportunity to having

         23  vastly, greater, positive impact on the health of

         24  City residents.

         25                 The Intro. Recognizes that the
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          2  environmental quality of residences is an important

          3  factor for New Yorkers in choosing where they live.

          4  The example in the bill of 20 River Terrace attests

          5  to that fact.  So that while we absolutely encourage

          6  the City Council to adopt 324, we also encourage you

          7  to look past LEED and realize that there are some

          8  larger issues involved then (a) the limited, the

          9  products that LEED addresses, there are more

         10  products out there which is one advantage at the

         11  same time of LEED.  Because in time LEED can evolve

         12  to cover more products.  But also look at the

         13  broadness that the City would like to apply this

         14  legislation.

         15                 Thank you very much for your time.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         17                 MS. STONE:  Hi, my name is Shannon

         18  Stone.  I am representing the Community

         19  Environmental Organization today.  The Community

         20  Environmental Center is a non- profit that provides

         21  energy audits, energy retrofits, and weatherization

         22  services to low income housing in New York City.

         23                 The Community Environmental Center

         24  fully supports Intro. 324- A because Green

         25  Buildings, building- by- building can provide
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          2  solutions to numerous environmental problems in New

          3  York City.  These problems do not necessarily have

          4  easy fixes and can cost billions of dollars to the

          5  City.

          6                 We think that LEED is the best tool

          7  that New York City can use in obtaining a better

          8  environment in regards to its building construction.

          9

         10                 However, the Community Environmental

         11  Center does not want city- funded housing to be

         12  ignored, in regards to providing New York City with

         13  a Green Building Policy.  The people who live in

         14  affordable housing probably need Green Building more

         15  than anyone. Low- income households pay a much

         16  larger percentage of their income on energy costs.

         17  Lower income communities suffer disproportionately

         18  from respiratory illnesses.  Affordable housing

         19  should be Green because it will lower energy bills

         20  substantially, and people will be able to breathe

         21  better inside them.

         22                 The Community Environmental Center is

         23  writing a cost benefit analysis of New York City

         24  affordable housing built to LEED new construction

         25  version 2.1 Silver Standard.  What we have found is

                                                            136

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  that New York City is quite compatible with LEED

          3  standards, and it does not necessarily cost more to

          4  build to LEED standards here than anyone else.

          5                 Affordable Green Buildings, according

          6  to our strategy for reaching LEED, would reduce the

          7  City's peak demand of electricity, reduce energy

          8  consumption, water consumption, reduce even combined

          9  sewer overflows, reduce waste, and improve indoor

         10  air quality, which directly benefits people's

         11  health.  We based our report on the Mayor's plan for

         12  the new housing market place on the plan for 65,000

         13  units within five years.  If this bill is passed,

         14  and by the time it takes effect, there will be

         15  30,000 units of housing on the drawing board.  Just

         16  imagine the benefits this bill would reap, if those

         17  30,000 units were built to LEED certification. If

         18  those 30,000 units reduce their energy consumption

         19  by 10, 20, 30 percent, their water consumption by 20

         20  to 30 percent, the amount of construction waste by

         21  50 to 75 percent, that would mean a lot to people,

         22  for New Yorkers during heat waves, for New Yorkers

         23  who live near private waste transfer stations or

         24  power plants, for New York children with asthma.

         25                 The initial cost premium for a Green
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          2  Building when designed and specified from the very

          3  beginning of the project, is minimal, but the

          4  benefits of a Green Building for all city- owned and

          5  all city- funded buildings including housing, can

          6  benefit the City both environmentally and

          7  economically, and can benefit the occupants and the

          8  Building's owners, for the building's entire life

          9  span.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  I would ask

         12  if possible, would you have a copy of the study that

         13  you alluded to in your testimony that you could

         14  provide to the Committee?

         15                 MS. STONE:  Thanks.  We are in the

         16  final stages of editing it and it will be published

         17  in a couple of weeks.  We will submit written

         18  comment for today, and we will send Council Members

         19  a copy of the report.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         21                 MR. RITA:  Madam Chair, Council

         22  Members, my name is Patrick Rita.  I am representing

         23  the American Forest and Paper Association (AF&PA)

         24  which is comprised of about 130- member companies

         25  that manufacture wood building products.
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          2                 I am here to testify against

          3  Introduction 324- A and 438.  We certainly support

          4  Green Buildings and energy efficiency. However, our

          5  evaluation of the LEED Green Building system shows

          6  some fundamental flaws in the program, which I have

          7  gone into pretty extensively there in my formal

          8  comments.

          9                 I am just going to briefly, I am last

         10  guy up here today, I am going to briefly summarize

         11  the points.

         12                 Our primary focus with regard to

         13  LEED, really focuses on the materials and resources

         14  provisions within LEED.  If you walk through that

         15  section, it becomes pretty clear, pretty quickly

         16  that there is a definite biased against using wood

         17  products, it is unmistakable.  Let me give you a

         18  couple of examples.

         19                 One of the points awarded under LEED

         20  is just with recycled content.  You get a point, if

         21  five percent based on a dollar value of your

         22  building project products that go into the building,

         23  5 percent you get one point, if it goes to 10

         24  percent you get two points.  Take steel for

         25  instance, you have got, basically, 85 upwards of 95
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          2  percent recycle content in steel.  So, if you are

          3  looking to design a building, steel is your optimal

          4  choice. Meanwhile, wood products do not inherently

          5  incorporate any recycled content, yet they are

          6  derived from a renewable resource.

          7                 In this particular section of the

          8  LEED rating system there is absolutely no

          9  recognition of that, no recognition of the benefits

         10  of renewable content.  We brought this to the

         11  attention of the United States Green Building

         12  Council, and have been rejected on that point so

         13  far.  Now to be fair there is an acknowledgment of

         14  the benefits of renewable materials, but once again,

         15  timber products are locked out.  Why, because the

         16  qualification is in order to get a point under LEED,

         17  it has to be rapidly renewable. The way they define

         18  that is, it has to be grown and harvested within a

         19  10- year period.  Well timber stands, typically take

         20  between 15 and 25 years to mature.  So, that

         21  essentially disqualifies us, and the problem we have

         22  is that it sends to the market place a signal that

         23  go ahead and deforest and area of native trees and

         24  replace with invasive species and non- native

         25  species, like bamboo, or a crop like sunflowers, and
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          2  you get a point under LEED.  We do not think that

          3  that is an environmental outcome that anybody wants.

          4                 And my final point is this floor

          5  certification issue, it came up earlier.  There is

          6  plenty of certified wood on the market, good

          7  certified wood drive from sustainably managed

          8  forestlands.  Unfortunately, LEED only recognizes

          9  one of the certification schemes, the creditable

         10  certification schemes that are currently on the

         11  market.  The two biggest that operate in United

         12  States are Sustainable Forestry Initiative and the

         13  American Tree Farm System.  Those are completed

         14  locked out of the program. So, the 4,000 tree

         15  farmers that operate here in New York State are

         16  practicing perhaps some of best forestry in the

         17  world, have no recognition under the program.

         18                 So, those are the points that I would

         19  like to make and just in closing, and by the United

         20  States Green Building Council's own admission, they

         21  did not use a life- cycle assessment in developing a

         22  standard.   They are currently undergoing, so we are

         23  told, a process in which life- cycle assessment is

         24  going to be applied to the current rating system in

         25  hopes of correcting some these deficiencies.  But
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          2  until that happens, the Forest Products Industry is

          3  forced to oppose government endorsement of LEED

          4  Green Building System.

          5                 Thank you, I will be happy to answer

          6  any questions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

          8  We also have a prepared statement in opposition to

          9  the two Intros. From the United Brotherhood of

         10  Carpenters and Joiners of America.  That will be

         11  entered into the record.

         12                 Council Member Brewer do you have any

         13  question?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Very quickly,

         15  from the gentleman who is with the Timber

         16  Association, so how will you change legislation?

         17  Have you testified similarly in California, and

         18  Chicago, and so on?  Have there been any changes

         19  based on your suggestions?

         20                 MR. RITA:  There has been a change in

         21  Maryland. However, just for the record, several

         22  states did consider legislation this year on LEED,

         23  and it was rejected by seven of the eight states,

         24  for primarily the reasons that Steve and I

         25  mentioned.               There is a number of ways
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          2  that you can approve the standard.  We like a new

          3  and emerging Green Building rating system known as

          4  Green Globes.  It is now being licensed for use in

          5  the United States.  It is based on a set of five

          6  globes.  It was prepared, based on the same model

          7  that was used to develop LEED. However, it does not

          8  discriminate against building products.  It takes

          9  into consideration life- cycle assessments.  We are

         10  very supportive of that.  We would like to see the

         11  Council perhaps recognize that standard in

         12  conjunction with or just outright in these two

         13  bills.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.

         15                 MR. ROSARIO:  Madam Chair, may I just

         16  add one comment.  Similar to the wood products - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Identify

         18  yourself, please?

         19                 MR. ROSARIO:  I am sorry, Stephen

         20  Rosario from the New York and Plastics Council.

         21  Similar to what my colleague at the end of the table

         22  mentioned, on certain plastic product issues we have

         23  also been before the USGBC, and up until recently we

         24  have also been rebuffed.  Again, I think that goes

         25  to a comment of a closed process as opposed to an
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          2  open process.  They finally relented earlier this

          3  year on the very issue that my co-panelist next to

          4  me mentioned, which is on vinyl.

          5                 And again for the record, I would

          6  disagree with what had been mentioned about vinyl.

          7  But, that is a very good example of why we are so

          8  concerned with LEED, because it does not become a

          9  building standard the way it is in the Building

         10  Codes.  But, it becomes a nice Green way of using a

         11  standard to deselect something that you may like,

         12  but I may dislike.  That is the concern we have.   Thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you.

         15  I think that concludes our testimony.  I would like

         16  to thank everyone who testified.  Also thank you to

         17  my staff, Sara, Terzah, and Russell and my faithful

         18  David, who is somewhere, and my faithful Committee

         19  person, Councilwoman Gale Brewer, also the

         20  Department of Buildings staff who I know is still in

         21  the audience.  Thank all of you.

         22                 And 324- A and Intro. 438 are laid

         23  over.  Again, thank you, and this hearing is

         24  adjourned.

         25                 (Hearing adjourned at 12:46 p.m.)
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          2                 (The following testimony was read

          3  into the record.)

          4

          5  Testimony of:

          6  Stephen C. McInnis

          7  Political Director, NYC District Council of

          8  Carpenters

          9  United Brotherhood of Carpenters and Joiners of

         10  America

         11                 Ladies and Gentlemen of the

         12  Committee:

         13                 The United Brotherhood of Carpenters

         14  and Joiners of America locals in New York City

         15  oppose the inclusion of the U.S. Green Building

         16  Council (USGBC)'s Leadership in Energy and

         17  Environmental Design (LEED) Green Building Ratings

         18  System in Introduction 324 and 438.

         19                 The New York City District Council

         20  represents 10 locals, which include 25,000

         21  Carpenters, Millwrights, Pile drivers, Dock

         22  Builders, Timbermen, Cabinetmakers, and Floor

         23  coverers in the five boroughs of New York City.

         24                 As a union whose members work with

         25  timber products at all stages of production, ranging
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          2  from cutting timber in our forest to its end uses in

          3  buildings throughout the City, therefore, we are

          4  firm believers in protecting the environment.

          5  Without a protected environment, we risk losing the

          6  one thing that gives many of us our jobs.  However,

          7  we also believe that we need to find a balance

          8  between protecting the environment and protecting

          9  the jobs of our members, whether they live in forest

         10  communities or in New York City.  This means we are

         11  very interested, and concerned, about the

         12  environmental performance of the building industry.

         13                 Therefore, we have been very

         14  concerned when any government considers endorsement

         15  of USGBC's LEED Green Building Rating System.  This

         16  is not to say we do not support the concept of

         17  environmentally, friendly buildings.  However, we

         18  believe that the LEED System does more harm than

         19  good, not only to the membership of the Carpenters

         20  Union, but also to the economy.

         21                 After extensive review of the System,

         22  we have come to the conclusion that it discriminates

         23  against environmentally, friendly wood and wood

         24  products.  In fact, we believe the LEED System

         25  actually promotes building products that are less
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          2  environmentally, friendly than wood.  Therefore, we

          3  believe that the System fails to meet its professed

          4  goal, and is not the best fit for governments and

          5  builders who are concerned about the environment.

          6                 Our three concerns are as follows:

          7                 The LEED System clearly discriminates

          8  against the use of wood products.  In our review of

          9  the System, we noted that in several specific

         10  credits, certain wood products are put at a

         11  significant disservice to "green" builders,

         12  architects, the government, and most importantly

         13  from our point of view, the workers of our union.

         14  We obviously believe that wood products are an

         15  integral part of the U.S. Building landscape, and

         16  are among the most environmentally, friendly of all

         17  building materials.  We are not alone in this view.

         18  As many of you know, a group of 15 research

         19  universities in the United States, the Consortium

         20  for Research on Renewable Industrial Products, found

         21  that wood, not steel or concrete, uses less overall

         22  energy, causes fewer air and water impacts, and does

         23  a better job of carbon sequestration, which helps

         24  address global warming.

         25                 LEED discriminates against the two
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          2  largest sustainable forestry programs in the United

          3  States.  As many of you know, there are multiple

          4  standards out there, but the LEED System gives one

          5  of them over the others.  Specifically, it gives

          6  credit to forest products that have been certified

          7  by the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC).  Credits

          8  are not given to wood products produced by companies

          9  independently, third- party certified to the

         10  Sustainable Forestry Initiative (SFI) Program

         11  standard, or by small private landowners who certify

         12  to standards of the American Tree Farm System

         13  (AFTS).  While this may not seem like a minor

         14  technical detail, I would remind the members of the

         15  Committee that the SFI and AFTS are the two largest

         16  sustainable forest management systems in the United

         17  States and Canada, while the FSC is primarily a

         18  European creation and used overseas.  Therefore, by

         19  endorsing the LEED System and FSC, you will be

         20  requiring builders in the New York City region to

         21  purchase foreign produced wood products.  The last

         22  thing I think that the Council wants is to support a

         23  System that will throw hundreds or thousands of

         24  union workers out of their jobs.

         25                 Finally, we have noted that at least
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          2  one well respected organization, the National

          3  Institute of Science and Technology (NIST), has

          4  found that the LEED System is flawed.  In their

          5  September 2002 review of the LEED System, NIST, a

          6  division of the U.S. Department of Commerce and the

          7  standards setting body of the U.S. Government, found

          8  the System does not properly rate products based on

          9  environmental criteria.  Specifically, NIST

         10  researchers found that several of the methodologies

         11  for calculating environmental credits.  In their

         12  review, their researchers looked at three specific

         13  credits in each of the Material and Resources, and

         14  Energy and Atmosphere areas of the LEED System for

         15  new building construction.  The NIST report

         16  specifically criticized the arbitrary measures, the

         17  lack of appropriate baseline and measures of

         18  improvement, and the inability to compare buildings

         19  in different locations on equal terms.  For more

         20  information, I recommend members of the Committee

         21  review their report,  Evaluation of LEED Using Life

         22  Cycle Assessment Methods (NIST GCR 02- 836).

         23                 Therefore, we believe that

         24  Introduction 324 and 438 are unacceptable as

         25  currently drafted, and urge the Committee to reject
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          2  them, unless they are significantly rewritten to

          3  address these concerns.  We look forward to working

          4  with the Committee and Council to pass language that

          5  truly protects our environment.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 1:10 p.m.)

          7

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            150

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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